
 
         
 
 
           

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Safer Communities Executive Board  

 
 
THURSDAY, 18TH FEBRUARY, 2010 at 11:00 HRS - CYPRIOT CENTRE, EARLHAM 
GROVE, WOOD GREEN, N22 5HT. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Please see the Membership List set out below.   

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence.  

 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any items of Urgent Business. (Late items of 

Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New 
items of Urgent Business will be considered under Item 18 set out below).  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Members of the Board must declare any personal and/or prejudicial interests with 

respect to agenda items and should not take part in any discussion with respect to 
those items.  
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 8)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2009 as a correct 

record.  
 

5. PERFORMANCE AND PROJECT EXCEPTION REPORT (APRIL TO DECEMBER 
2009)  (PAGES 9 - 20)  

 



 

2 

DISCUSSION TOPIC: 
 
6. SAFER COMMUNITIES PRIORITIES 2010 - 11  (PAGES 21 - 24)  
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
7. AREA BASED GRANT RESOURCE PLANS 2010/11  (PAGES 25 - 30)  
 
8. PROBATION ROLE AS NEW RESPONSIBLE BODY FROM APRIL    
 
 A verbal update will be given.  

 
9. HARINGEY REDUCING RE-OFFENDING PROGRAMME ACTION PLAN 2010/11  

(PAGES 31 - 44)  
 
10. HARINGEY EMERGENCY ALERT SERVICE  (PAGES 45 - 48)  
 
11. UPDATE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD RISK REGISTER  (PAGES 

49 - 52)  
 
12. MPA JOINT ENGAGEMENT MEETING - KEY POINTS    
 
 A verbal update will be given.  

 
13. SCRUTINY REVIEW - SUPPORT TO VICTIMS OF CRIME  (PAGES 53 - 56)  
 
14. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME PLANNING 2010/11  (PAGES 

57 - 60)  
 
FEEDBACK / INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
15. FEEDBACK FROM SAFER COMMUNITIES AWARDS CEREMONY    
 
 A verbal update will be given by the Chair.  

 
16. OUTCOME OF PUBLICITY CAMPAIGNS  - INCLUDING 'MY SAFER HARINGEY'    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
17. ASB SUMMIT - PURPOSE AND PROGRAMME    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
18. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of Urgent Business admitted under Item 2 above.  

 
19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 



 

3 

 To raise any items of AOB.  
 

20. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 Please note the dates for the new Municipal Year 2010/11, set out below, are still 

provisional at present and may be subject to change until they are confirmed by 
Council.  
 

• 8 July 2010, 11.00am, Council Chamber, Civic Centre 

• 14 October 2010, 11.00am, Council Chamber, Civic Centre 

• 26 January 2011, 11.00am, Council Chamber, Civic Centre 

• 21 April 2011, 11.00am, Council Chamber, Civic Centre 
 
Once these dates have been confirmed members of the Board will be notified.  
 

 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Member Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Xanthe Barker 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 020-8489 2957 
Fax: 020-8881 5218 
Email: xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
       Published 10 February 2010  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORGANISATIONS NO. 
OF 

REPS 

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE 

Haringey Council 
 

8 Councillor Nilgun Canver, Executive Member for Enforcement & Community 
Safety (Chair)  
Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive  
Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment  
Peter Lewis, Director of The Children and Young People’s Service 
Barbara Nicholls, Adult, Culture and Community Services 
Claire Kowalska,  Community Safety Strategic Manager 
Marion Morris, Drug & Alcohol Partnership Manager 
Jean Croot, Head of Safer Communities 
 

Haringey Teaching Primary 
Care Trust  

1 James Slater, Director 
 

Haringey Metropolitan 
Police 

1 Dave Grant, Borough Commander (Vice-Chair) 
 

Haringey Fire Service 
 

1 John Brown, Borough Commander 

Haringey Probation Service 
 

1 Kate Gilbert, Head of Service Delivery, Haringey 

Homes for Haringey 1 Paul Bridge, Chief Executive  
 

Mental Health Trust 1 Lee Bojtor, Director 
 

Community Link Forum 3 Sue Brown 
Mohamed Maigag 
Rev Nims Obunge 
 

HAVCO 1 Enid Ledgister 
 

Metropolitan Police 
Authority 

1 Joanne McCartney, Independent MPA Member 

Haringey Magistrates Court 1 Stephen Carroll, Bench Legal Manager 
 

Haringey Crown 
Prosecution Service 

1 Hywel Ebsworth 
 

TOTAL  21  

 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 
Present:  Councillor Nilgun Canver (Chair), Stephen Ayres, John Brown, Sue 

Brown, Jean Croot, Kevin Fitzpatrick, Dave Grant (Vice-Chair), Chris 
Hannington, Claire Kowalska, Enid Ledgister, Joanne McCartney, Marion 
Morris, Tessa Newton, Barbara Nicholls, Rev Nims Obunge, Mary 
Pilgrim, Chloe Stephenson.  
 

 
In 
Attendance
:  

Xanthe Barker, Anita Hunt, Leo Kearse, Wayne Longshaw and Rob 
Mack.   
 

 
LC142. APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from the following: 
 
Lee Bojtor 
Niall Bolger 
Paul Bridge 
Hywel Ebsworth  
Sam Evans 
Dr Ita O’Donovan  
Jennifer James 
Peter Lewis 
Mohamed Maigag 
Robin Payne 
James Slater  
 

LC143. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
No items of Urgent Business were received.  
 

LC144. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No Declarations of Interest were made.  
 

LC145. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the inclusion of the paragraph set out below, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 10 September 2010 should be confirmed as a correct record: 
 
Minute LC131: 
 
‘It was noted that with respect to Crime Scrutiny Option 1 the Metropolitan Police 
Authority should be invited to attend as a statutory invitee and expert advisor’.   
 

LC146. HALF YEAR PERFORMANCE AND EXCEPTION REPORT  
 
The Board received a report that detailed performance from April to September 2009 
against Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets within the Board’s responsibility.  
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

The Board was given an overview of performance during the period above and it was 
noted that there had been some notable successes in the first half of the year. These 
included a drop in serious youth violence and a reduction in acquisitive crime, despite 
the recession. 
 
The main area of concern continued to be the level of serious violent crime affecting 
the nineteen plus age group and gang related activity both within Haringey and cross-
border.  The Board was advised new investment had been committed to engaging 
with this age group and a problem-solving group was in place to look at ways of 
addressing this issue. 
 
It was noted that the level of problematic drug users in treatment had stagnated . 
However,, measures were being taken to address this including additional publicity for 
drug treatment services locally and this was having a positive effect.  The final target 
would not be confirmed for a further four months. 
 
The Council’s Drug and Alcohol Awareness Team (DAAT) was also carrying out new 
work with Accident and Emergency Teams to identify ways that staff could address 
issues created by a number of hard core drinkers in the Borough. 
 
In response to a query the Board was advised that the Youth Offending Service (YOS) 
had extensive monitoring arrangements in place to measure the impact that 
interventions had upon the rate of re-offending. The YOS had a triage system 
whereby fifty-seven young people, classed as being at a high risk of re-offending, 
were closely worked with and to date only three of this group had re-offended.  
 
It was noted that Enid Ledgister had played a significant role in improving cross 
Borough working and Partners expressed thanks to for her contribution this.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 

LC147. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FORM THE ANNUAL STRATEGIC NEEDS 
ASSESSMENT  
 
The Board received a report and presentation setting out the key findings of the latest 
Strategic Needs Assessment.  
 
Following the presentation it was noted that the Assessment demonstrated the strong 
correlation between health and crime issues. It was suggested that a joint piece of 
work should be undertaken to assess how this could be addressed by the Council, 
Police and NHS Haringey and that this should draw on the model used in Glasgow.  
 
It was noted that a visit had been made by representatives from Glasgow Police to 
observe good practice and this had informed work carried out in establishing the 
model. 
 
It was requested that copies of the presentation were circulated to the Board. The 
Board was advised that the full report would be available by 27 November and it was 
agreed that this should also be circulated.  
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

Concern was expressed that data, which illustrated a prevalence of certain crimes 
amongst young males of African Caribbean descent, was often not addressed directly. 
There was agreement that a piece of work focussing on this issue was required.  
 
The Board discussed gun crime and it was noted that the Police had recently 
responded to a number of serious incidents in Borough. The Board was advised that 
targeted work such as ‘Operation Swift’ was aimed at addressing chaotic gang crime 
and within this there was a focus on working with the families of young people to 
tackle this problem. This approach reflected successful work that had been 
undertaken with young people to address gang related crime in America.  
 
The Chair noted that in order to address entrenched patterns of behaviour and crime 
all of the agencies involved would need to take on board the experiences of other 
communities and countries. It was suggested that the Partnership’s approach to 
tackling gang related crime should be treated as a strategic issue and discussed by 
the HSP.  
 
In response to a query with respect to Hate Crime, the Board was advised that 
reported incidents of race related crime were reducing; however, incidents of 
homophobic crime were increasing. Work would be carried out to analyse the causes 
of this. Anecdotal evidence suggested that as new communities developed and 
immigrants became more familiar with the public services available, there was an 
increase in the number of hate crimes reported by people from these communities.  
 
There was agreement that, in some areas, a greater breakdown of the information 
would be useful to illustrate where one factor may be distorting the information. For 
example it was suggested that this could be applied to information with respect to drug 
and alcohol data in order to develop a more targeted approach.  
 
It was noted that at its December meeting the SCEB PMG would be considering the 
implications for projects during the last year of the LAA and there was agreement that 
the findings of the DAAT Needs Assessment would need to be considered as part of 
this.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the content of the report and presentation be noted.  
 

LC148. ZONAL AND AREA BASED WORKING REPORT  
 
The Board received a report that provided an update on the Zonal Working pilot 
operating in the South East of the Borough. The report also set out proposals for the 
rolling out of the scheme across the Borough.  
 
The Board was reminded that the pilot project for Zonal Working in the south of the 
Borough had been agreed to May 2009. The Problem Solving Group attached to this 
met on a monthly basis to deliver the objectives set out in its Terms of Reference.  
 
It was noted that the pilot had raised a number of issues that would reflected in the 
rolling out of the scheme. These would be considered by the Zonal Steering Group, 
which was tasked with evaluating the project and ensuring that learning was shared.  

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

If the Board was agreeable the Steering Group would also lead on the rolling out of 
the project in the whole of the Borough.  
 
The Chair noted that the pilot project had been successful in enabling the different 
agencies to analyse persistent issues as a group and to pool funding to address these 
issues. She expressed her support for the rolling out of the scheme.  
 
In response to a query as to how the Third Sector could link into Zonal Working the 
Board was advised that at present there was not an established mechanism to 
facilitate this. However, any issues of concern could be raised with the local 
Neighbourhood Manager. There was agreement that the SCEB PMG should also 
consider this issue at its next meeting.  
 
It was recognised that Zonal based working represented a significant shift in working 
practice and there was agreement that consideration ought to be given the training 
implications that this presented.  
  
It was requested that information on the scheme was provided to the Metropolitan 
Police Authority (MPA) in order to inform its best practice structure.  
 
The Board discussed the issue of displacement and it was acknowledged that in some 
instances resolving issues in one area, most notably anti social behaviour, meant that 
they were pushed into neighbouring areas. It was noted that communication with local 
residents was essential to monitor the impact of this on ‘the ground’.  
 
It was noted that there had been significant success seen by other initiatives where 
targeted work had been carried out with families that were known to a range of 
agencies. The Board discussed the ‘Diamond Districts’ initiative, which used this 
approach, and it was noted that if the initiative was adopted the area based working 
already taking place could be developed further.  
 
Concern was expressed that the resources required to support the Diamond Districts 
initiative may not be available as budgets were reduced over the next two years. It 
was noted that the long term cost benefits that the project would bring would out 
weigh the additional cost. This would need to be balanced against the short term cost 
when considering the adoption of the scheme.  
 
In conclusion the Board expressed its support for proposals to roll out Zonal Based 
working across the Borough.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the proposals for the rolling out of Zonal Based Working, as set out in the report, 
be approved.  
 
 

LC149. COMMUNITY JUSTICE COURT -DEVELOPMENTS  
 
The Board received a presentation on how the Community Justice Court pilot was 
progressing.  
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

The new style of Court was intended to ensure that offenders understood the impact 
of their crimes on individuals and the local community and to provide the opportunity 
for them to make a contribution to the community as part of their sentence.  
 
Magistrates were also given training to assist them in considering individual’s 
backgrounds and assess how they could best assist them to change their patterns of 
behaviour and reduce the likelihood of re-offending. This approach was innovative and 
was resourced and supported by a ‘Help Desk’, which was staffed by a support team 
that worked with individuals and provided information for Magistrates to inform their 
decisions.  
 
In response to a query, as to what action was being taken to ensure that public 
confidence was not lost, due to what might be perceived as the more lenient approach 
taken by the Court, the Board was advised that a great deal of effort had been made 
by individual Magistrates to explain what was happening as part of the pilot. Many 
Magistrates had briefed local community groups and any requests for this type of 
briefing would be met wherever possible.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.  
 

LC150. INFORMATION SHARING PROTOCOL -FINAL AND NEXT STEPS  
 
The Board received a report that set out changes that had been made to the 
Information Sharing Protocol since the previous meeting.  
 
It was requested that the Metropolitan Police Authority (MPA) were added to the list of 
statutory partners include within the protocol.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 

LC151. CHANGES TO LONDON FIRE AND EMERGENCY PLANNING SERVICE  
 
The Board received a presentation on the changes to the London Fire and Emergency 
Planning Service. 
 
It was noted that the key message to draw from the presentation was that the ‘London 
Safety Plan 4’ was now being consulted upon and that this was the Partnership’s 
opportunity to respond and shape the document.  
 
Partners were invited to contact John Brown following the meeting if they had any 
queries.  
 
The Chair thanked John Brown for the presentation.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.  
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

LC152. PROGRESS UPDATE FROM SUB-GROUPS  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 

LC153. RESTRUCTURE OF VICTIM SUPPORT  
 
The Board received a verbal update on the restructuring of the Victim Support 
Service.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That information, available next week, which would provide more detailed information 
with respect to the changes taking place should be circulated to the Board.  
 

LC154. MPA/MPS TARGET SETTING PROCESS  
 
The Board received a verbal update with on this item.  
 
It was noted that in the New Year there would be discussion around the targets that 
would be set to ensure that these were aligned to existing targets.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the verbal update be noted.  
 
 

LC155. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
No new items of Urgent Business were admitted.  
 

LC156. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Changes to The Probation Service 
 
It was noted that as the Service moved towards Trust status and its structure was 
revised, the current representative for Haringey, Mary Pilgrim, would be leaving 
Haringey to represent Redbridge and Waltham Forest.  
 
The new representative for Haringey would Kay Gilbert.  
 
Mary Pilgrim thanked the Board and colleagues from across the Partnership for their 
support and the Chair wished her well in her new role.  
 
Second Safer Haringey Awards Ceremony  
 
The Chair noted that this event was taking place on 11 February and advised that 
formal invitations would be issued shortly.  
 
Swine Flu 
 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

The Board was advised that although the second wave of Swine Flu was now 
affecting people, lower rates of infection than initially anticipated were being 
experienced. A vaccination programme to protect the most vulnerable groups was 
now underway.   
 

LC157. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

It was noted that the next meeting was due to be held on 4 February 2010, at 11am, in 
the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Wood Green.  
 
 

Councillor Nilgun Canver  
 
Chair 
 

The meeting closed at 1.10pm. 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board  
    
Date:   18 February 2010  
 
Report Title: Performance and Project Exception Report (April – 

December 2009) 
 
Report of: Claire Kowalska, Community Safety Strategic  
 Manager  

 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

To inform the SCEB of performance year-to-date (April – December 2009) 
against the key community safety targets.  The latest information from the police 
performance scorecard is available up to week ending 24th January 2010 and 
has been used where relevant.  

 

2. State link(s) with Other Plan Priorities and actions and /or other 
Strategies: 

2.1. Addressing the prevention and reduction of crime, the fear of crime, the harm 
caused by drugs and alcohol and anti-social behaviour are all key parts of the 
cleaner, greener and safer priority. Collectively, these remain top priorities for 
residents 

 

3. Recommendations 

  That SCEB note the highlights and the mitigating actions to address the areas of 
concern 

 
4. Summary – See purpose of the report above 
 

5.  Chief Financial Officer Comments (N/A) 

All planned actions are deliverable within agreed and existing budgets, primarily 
through the Area Based Grant.   
 

6.  Head of Legal Services Comments (N/A) 

There are no areas of obvious concern from a legal perspective 
 
 Head of Procurement Comments – [Required for Procurement Committee] – N/A 
 

7.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

 
People from black and ethnic minority communities, and young people, have a 
disproportionately high risk of becoming a victim of crime.  In addition, women and 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 9



 

 2 

older people tend to suffer from higher levels of anxiety about crime. There are 
several actions which have directly addressed this over the year and these include: 
Targeted interventions of the most vulnerable streets and houses in the borough; an 
increase in outreach to young people by Victim Support; development of the third 
party reporting process for hate crime; delivery of the Preventing Violent Extremism 
agenda; increased response by the YOS to ethnic changes in their caseload; 
additional support with resettlement for non-statutory offenders.  A Scrutiny Review 
of support to victims is nearing completion in the borough.   

 

8.  Consultation  

All issues relating to performance are shared and discussed with the multi-agency 
Performance Management Group (PMG), reporting to the SCEB 
 

9.  Service Financial Comments 

 
A high proportion of the Safer Communities Service is funded externally and through 
the Area-Based Grant (ABG).  This leaves the Service without the security of stable 
and ongoing funding.  Reductions on external grants (e.g. National Treatment 
Agency funds for drug treatment services) result in some areas of work being 
particularly vulnerable. 
 

10.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

 
A project/budget highlight report is attached  
 

11. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

11.1. Background papers are as follows: 
 
      Cutting Crime:  Home Office Strategy 2008-2011 
      Safer for All Strategy 2008-2011 
      National Drug Strategy 2008-2011 

       
 

13.  Background 
 

13.1 The Safer Communities Partnership is responsible for a number of key targets 
under the Local Area Agreement (LAA).  These are: 

 
  NI 15 –  serious violent crime 
  NI 16 –  serious acquisitive crime 
  NI 21 -   perception of how well the police and local authority deal with crime  

   and ASB in the local area   
  NI 35  -  preventing violent extremism 

N 40  -   numbers into effective drug treatment 
  NI 111 – reduction in young people (aged 10-17) entering the youth justice  

   system 
 

Page 10



 

 3 

13.2 In addition, there are two stretch targets which expire in March 2010: 
Reduction in repeat victimisation for domestic violence (and increased 
detections); reduction in personal robbery.   

 
14.   Key highlights and successes from Q3 2009/10 
  
14.1  Haringey police recorded 5.6% fewer total recorded offences (21,302 against 

22,556) up to the end of January compared with the same time last year and 
compared with a 2% reduction at the end of Q2. 

 
14.2 All key property crimes (robbery, motor vehicle crime and residential burglary) 

saw reductions up to 24th January.  Collectively, performance against these 
acquisitive crimes (NI 16) is 10% better than this time last year despite 
predictions to the contrary during a recession.  Significant partnership activity, 
seasonal campaigns and investment in burglary and theft from motor vehicles 
have contributed to the favourable results.  Mapping technology is also being 
used to identify and target localised areas that are most likely to be affected 
by these crimes. 

 
 Robbery stretch target 
 
14.3 Personal robbery is showing a 7.5% decrease (777 offences) compared with 

this time last year and is on track to be well within the upper target limite of 
1,557 offences by year end. This crime predominantly affects young people 
with 75% of perpetrators aged 12 – 19 years and victims of a similar profile.  
The continuing strong performance by police Q-cars remains a key factor. 

 
 Domestic violence stretch targets 
 
14.4 There were 520 DV sanctioned detections during Q3, giving a rate of 41% 

against a stretch target of 38%.  Performance had improved still further to 
43% by 24th January and we are currently on track to achieve this target. 

 
14.5 By the end of Q3, there were 117 recorded repeat victims of domestic  
 violence against a stretch target of 142 by the end of the stretch period - 
 March 2010.  Past and current performance suggests that this  
 target will be reached. 
 
14.6 Perceptions of how well the council and police deal with crime and ASB (NI 

21) are measured annually in the Place Survey.  Haringey has delivered an 
exceptional package of interventions this year and has been highly 
commended by the Home Office for innovative practice. This includes 
successful parenting interventions, published court outcomes,  Community 
Payback schemes, a street drinking review, recruitment of a Victim and 
Witness Support Officer for ASB cases in the civil court, assistance into 
housing, treatment and employment through the Helpdesk and distribution to 
all households of the first community safety newsletter focusing on confidence 
and achievement.  In addition, ASB issues of concern are being dealt with 
through local problem-solving groups and there are plans to increase positive 
publicity from this activity and successful ASBAT action.  The Home Office 
recently confirmed funding for 2010-11. 

 
14.7 The programme to address violent extremism is developing steadily and 

Haringey is on track to achieve level 3 as per the agreed target (NI 35).  We 

Page 11



 

 4 

are currently at level 2 on the delivery scale.  Training is underway for front-
line staff to support the main objectives of the programme.  These entail 
challenging ideology; disrupting those who promote extremism; supporting 
individuals, who are vulnerable to recruitment; and addressing the grievances 
that ideologues are promoting. 

 
14.8 Haringey is progressing well this year with the challenging target of preventing 

first time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 (NI 111).  Year-to-
date 1,135 new entrants have been recorded against a final target of 2,313.  
In Q3 alone, the number dropped significantly to 252 against a quarterly target 
of 578. The adverse weather conditions may have been partly responsible for 
this result.  However, a key success factor has been the prevention work of 
trained youth staff working in custody suites as part of the ‘triage’ programme.  
Further intensive intervention programmes are running as part of the 
Challenge and Support scheme. It must be noted that the official figures 
always await full confirmation from the Youth Justice Board and these can 
vary slightly from the police generated figures above.  .   

 
The percentage of 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment or 
training (NEETS/ NI117) has also improved.  The current number of NEETS 
(228) represents a decrease of 26 or 8% compared with last month.  At the 
end of Q3, the numbers were down to 7% against a target of 10%.  Serious 
youth violence saw a marginal increase to the end of January of 189 
compared with 185 the previous year-to-date. 
 

14.9   Improvements were recorded to victim support services for young people 
during Q3.  Victim Support reported an increase in the number of 1-2-1 
appointments held, with 60% honouring their appointment.  They also saw a 
decrease in cancelled appointments from 56% in Q2 to 41% in Q3.  The 
outreach workers appear to be having some impact and will be commissioned 
to undertake more specific work in the coming year. 

 
15. Issues and areas of concern  
 
15.1 The number of recorded ‘most serious violent crimes’ (NI 15) has been of 

utmost concern this financial year and remains a top priority.  At the end of 
January, Haringey was showing a 20% increase against the same period the 
previous year with the annual reduction target of 4% still out of reach. There 
were 391 recorded offences at the end of Q3 against a year-end target of 311. 
This figure has, however, reduced by more than double from a 45% peak in 
August 2009. The Gang Intervention Project is underway and providing 
mediation and signposting to education, employment and training 
opportunities.  A specialist worker is being recruited through the targeted 
inclusion programme to respond to referrals from the Gang Action Group and 
the fruitful collaboration between Haringey and Enfield continues. 

 
15.2 Performance data for the number of problematic drug users in effective 

treatment (NI 40) relates to the 12-month rolling period from Sept 08 – August 
09 due to established delays in data availability (clients in the cohort must 
remain in treatment for 3 months).  The target for year end 2009/10 is to have 
at least 1,108 users in treatment. Haringey achieved 993 people during Q1 
and Q2 but the number of new clients has been declining and there is a risk of 
not meeting the final target.  This follows a trend across London and all local 
partners and services commissioned by Haringey DAAT are stepping up 

Page 12



 

 5 

actions to address this.  These include BUBIC, Eban, Probation, DIP and 
DASH.  An access and engagement group has been developed to co-ordinate 
the work and the trend is being monitored on a monthly basis. 

 
15.3 There is always a structural delay in confirming figures for the rate of hospital 

admissions per 100,000.  However, provisional figures for the first half of the 
year 2009/10 suggest a rate of 899 against a year-end target of 1,654.  These 
figures are higher than during any quarter in 2008/9 and meeting the target 
will be challenging.  It must be noted that the outcomes from current 
investment and actions are not likely to be seen in the short-term.  This target 
category also includes partially attributable conditions such as falls and 
hypertensive disease which may be linked to alcohol but have other causes. 

 
Significant activity is taking place in the borough to address these problems.  
This includes interventions at A&E, new detoxification facilities, peripatetic 
nursing, enhancement to the COSMIC service for children and families, social 
marketing campaigns, alcohol needs’ assessments and possible enhanced 
screening. 

 
16. Project and budget highlight report (copy attached) 
 
16.1 All project leads report on a quarterly basis against agreed milestones and a 

spend plan, submitted at the start of the year. 
 
16.2 In Q3, all projects were rated Green or Amber with the following four areas 

indicating at least one Red marker:   
 
16.3 The anticipated recruitment of a sustainable CCTV Manager to unite 

operational and strategic functions has been unsuccessful and the amount 
has been used this year for interim arrangements.  It is currently expected that 
this gap will be covered from within existing resources in the coming year. 

 
16.4 The Haringey Police Provision registered an under-spend in Q3 and plans are 

being adjusted in order to achieve full spend and delivery across all targets.  
 
16.5 The problem-solving budget is due to achieve full spend by the end of the 

financial year.  However, several invoices are still going through the system 
and have not yet registered.  This budget has been successful in promoting 
efficient problem resolution and strengthening partnership working.  

 
16.6 At the next PMG meeting due in February, the remaining funds from the 

problem-solving budget (approximately £10K) will be allocated to bids put 
forward for approval. These bids will address the priorities arising from the 
new strategic assessment and/or evidence led requests from the Zonal 
Steering Group.   

 
16.7 Haringey received additional and unexpected funding to deliver the 

Preventing Violent Extremism programme late in the year.  This, coupled with 
outstanding invoices, has caused the Q3 under-spend.  Discussions are 
underway to resolve this issue.  

 
16.8 In line with previous years, the Safer Communities Partnership has received a 

capital fund of £121K. This was put to tender in the summer and a final 
decision on successful bids was made at the last PMG.  One project in 

Page 13



 

 6 

support of an Open Air Gym facility is unable to proceed due to planning 
issues and the PMG will decide on re-allocation at its forthcoming meeting. 
The main projects approved for 2009/10 are listed below.  These all strongly 
support the priorities in the Safer for All strategy and Local Area Agreement: 

 
 :  Overt surveillance of priority Anti-social behaviour 
 :  IT training equipment for empowering Muslim women 
 :  Priority anti-burglary projects 
 :  Swift response monitoring and support system for vulnerable victims  
           :  Inter-generational community project 
 :  Woodwork project to assist offenders into work 
 
 We have recently received confirmation of continued but reduced capital 

funding of £60K for 2010-11 
 
 
 
 
Community Safety Team 
February 2010 

Page 14



P
ro
je
c
t 
H
ig
h
li
g
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
e
ri
o
d
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
- 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

Last Quarter

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

0
9
/1
0

S
p
e
n
d
 T
o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft
 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/t
a
rg
e
ts
 0
9
/1
0

Y
e
a
r 
to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
u
b
lic
 

a
re
a
, 
tr
a
ff
ic
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

C
C
T
V
 s
y
s
te
m
s
, 
a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
C
T
V
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
c
o
d
e
 o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
to
c
o
ls
.

T
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 i
n
 

a
ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
C
T
V
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
, 

u
s
in
g
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

T
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
, 

e
x
p
e
rt
is
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

fo
r 
C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
te
d
 m
a
tt
e
rs
.

T
o
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
e
e
ts
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
.

P
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 t
o
 b
e
 

w
id
e
ly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

P
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 m
is
ta
k
e
s

P
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
(w
a
rd
) 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c
ri
m
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

s
e
t 
b
y
 M
P
S
, 
G
o
L
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 L
A
A

D
e
liv
e
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
o
lic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 

s
o
lv
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
ri
s
e

D
ir
e
c
t 
w
o
rk
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 D
a
ta
 R
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 U
n
it
 P
ro
b
le
m
 

P
ro
fi
le
s

D
e
liv
e
r 
m
o
n
th
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 

ty
p
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is

G
G

£
3
6
5
,0
0
0

£
1
8
8
,3
2
7

£
1
7
6
,6
7
3

A
G

£
1
2
2
,0
9
8

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
o
lic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n

Ia
n
 K
ib
b
le
w
h
it
e
 

(M
e
t 
P
o
lic
e
) 

� ���

A

� ���

A
R

B
u
d
g
e
t:
 A
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
w
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
 Q
3
 e
x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 Q
4
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 P
la
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
is
it
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 Q
4
 i
n
 

G
G

R

£
2
0
5
,0
0
0

£
8
2
,9
0
2

B
u
d
g
e
t:
 O
c
to
b
e
r-
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t.
 P
M
G
 

w
ill
 a
llo
c
a
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 u
n
a
llo
c
a
te
d
 f
u
n
d
s
 a
p
p
x
 £
1
0
k
 a
t 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 F
e
b
.

R A
A

G
A

G
G

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

C
C
T
V
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

P
ro
b
le
m
 S
o
lv
in
g

C
la
ir
e
 

K
o
w
a
ls
k
a

A
n
n
 

C
u
n
n
in
g
h
a
m

R
G

£
3
1
,3
0
0

Is
s
u
e
: 
R
e
c
e
n
t 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 C
C
T
V
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
w
a
s
 u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 F
u
n
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
  

in
te
ri
m
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
o
 f
a
r 
th
is
 y
e
a
r.
  
R
a
n
k
in
g
  
re
la
te
s
 t
o
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

in
 P
ID
 b
u
t 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 f
a
ile
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
.

£
2
3
,2
5
0

£
8
,0
5
0

G

� ���

A

P
ro
je
c
ts

P
ro
je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in
a
n
c
e
s

R
A
G
 S
ta
tu
s

Monitoring Return

C
o
m
 S
tr
a
t 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

Q
U
A
R
T
E
R
 3
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 H
IG
H
L
IG
H
T
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 -
 S
A
F
E
R
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\9
\9
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
0
5
9
9
\Q
3
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
1
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 1
0
/0
2
/1
0
 1
8
:0
3

1
 o
f 
5

Page 15



P
ro
je
c
t 
H
ig
h
li
g
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
e
ri
o
d
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
- 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

Last Quarter

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

0
9
/1
0

S
p
e
n
d
 T
o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft
 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/t
a
rg
e
ts
 0
9
/1
0

Y
e
a
r 
to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
ro
je
c
ts

P
ro
je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in
a
n
c
e
s

R
A
G
 S
ta
tu
s

Monitoring Return

C
o
m
 S
tr
a
t 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 “
S
a
fe
r 
fo
r 
A
ll”
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

T
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 

c
ri
m
e
 (
n
o
n
-d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
).

T
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 (
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
b
u
rg
la
ry
, 

th
e
ft
 o
f 
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 m
o
to
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
n
d
 

ro
b
b
e
ry
.

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
a
d
u
lt
s
 (
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 

p
ri
s
o
n
e
rs
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
)

T
o
 m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
ly
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

h
o
w
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e
 d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
J
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

T
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

T
o
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 e
m
b
e
d
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
-

s
o
lv
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
-l
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

T
o
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 h
o
m
e
 v
is
it
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

p
e
rs
o
n
s
 a
g
e
d
 5
5
y
rs
 p
lu
s
.

T
o
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
u
d
it
s
 

a
t 
th
e
 h
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
b
u
rg
la
ry
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

T
o
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
.

B
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 2
0
0
 

e
n
q
u
ir
e
s
, 
v
is
it
e
d
 1
5
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 t
o
 1
5
0
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
.

In
c
re
a
s
e
 w
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
's
 s
a
fe
ty

H
o
ld
 a
b
u
s
e
rs
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le

U
n
d
e
rm
in
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
to
le
ra
n
c
e
/a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 G
e
n
d
e
r 
A
b
u
s
e
 

o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

e
it
h
e
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 o
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s

G

G
G

G
£
8
2
,4
0
0

£
6
7
,5
7
0

G
G

£
1
4
,8
3
0

G
£
4
3
0
,0
0
0

£
2
4
4
,3
2
0

£
1
8
5
,6
8
0

N
o
 r
is
k
s
 o
r 
is
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

£
2
0
,0
0
0

Is
s
u
e
:F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
k
e
y
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
n
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 -
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
is
k
:F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
 

a
re
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 c
ri
m
e
 A
S
B
 M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e

£
2
0
,0
0
0

E
v
e
 

F
e
a
th
e
rs
to
n
e

A
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

� ���

G
£
4
0
,0
0
0

G
G

G

G
G

A
n
ti
-B
u
rg
la
ry
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
je
c
t

S
te
v
e
 F
a
llo
n
 

(C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
)

� ���
S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n

A
G

C
la
ir
e
 

K
o
w
a
ls
k
a

A
G

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 Q
4
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 P
la
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
is
it
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 Q
4
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
ta
rg
e
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
.

� ���

A

G
G

G

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\9
\9
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
0
5
9
9
\Q
3
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
1
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 1
0
/0
2
/1
0
 1
8
:0
3

2
 o
f 
5

Page 16



P
ro
je
c
t 
H
ig
h
li
g
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
e
ri
o
d
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
- 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

Last Quarter

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

0
9
/1
0

S
p
e
n
d
 T
o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft
 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/t
a
rg
e
ts
 0
9
/1
0

Y
e
a
r 
to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
ro
je
c
ts

P
ro
je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in
a
n
c
e
s

R
A
G
 S
ta
tu
s

Monitoring Return

C
o
m
 S
tr
a
t 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

P
ro
v
id
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t,
 m
u
tu
a
l 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
, 
w
it
h
 s
h
a
re
d
 p
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 

a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 n
o
n
-v
io
le
n
c
e

C
o
m
b
a
t 
g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
b
u
s
e

T
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 a
ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
A
S
B
 i
n
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 n
o
n
 

te
n
u
re
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 (
e
.g
. 
p
u
b
lic
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
).
 

T
o
 w
o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

is
s
u
e
s

T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 A
S
B
 o
n
 

o
th
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
to
 d
o
 i
f 
s
u
b
je
c
te
d
 t
o
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
b
u
lly
in
g
.

T
h
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 o
ff
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
o
re
 p
ro
lif
ic
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 i
n
 A
S
B
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
k
ill
s
. 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 ‘
tr
ip
le
 t
ra
c
k
’ 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

in
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 A
S
B
 a
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
C
S
F
/H
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
. 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 M
e
n
to
r:
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 o
f 
2
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 N
1
 4
5
. 
 C
o
-

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p

D
ru
g
s
 W
o
rk
: 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 

v
ia
  
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
. 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 T
ri
a
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 

b
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
rr
e
s
te
d
 o
n
 d
ru
g
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rt
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S
y
s
te
m
. 
F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 c
a
n
n
a
b
is
 a
n
d
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
.

B
u
d
g
e
t:
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
ro
fi
le
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
 

s
lip
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

G
G

G
£
8
2
,4
0
0

£
6
7
,5
7
0

G
G

£
1
4
,8
3
0

F
e
a
th
e
rs
to
n
e

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e

� ���
G

G A

R
IS
K
S
: 
N
o
 r
is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 t
h
is
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
.:
 C
o
n
s
id
e
r 

re
g
ra
d
in
g
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
R
A
G
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 G
R
E
E
N
 a
s
 R
E
D
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
 r
e
fe
rs
 t
o
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
IS
S
U
E
: 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
re
g
ra
d
in
g
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
R
A
G
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 G
R
E
E
N
 a
s
 R
E
D
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

is
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
.

G
G

A
A G

G
� ���

£
1
9
,7
6
9

£
9
5
,7
3
1

£
1
1
5
,5
0
0

G
G

G

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
 

W
o
rk

T
e
s
s
a
 N
e
w
to
n
 

(V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
)

S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
Y
o
u
th
 C
ri
m
e
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n

L
in
d
a
 J
a
m
e
s

  
  
N
O
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 O
R
 R
IS
K
S
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
.

G
£
5
5
,0
3
8

£
2
2
9
,4
6
2

£
2
8
4
,5
0
0

A
G

A
A

G
A

A
A

£
9
1
,7
5
9

£
6
8
,8
5
1

£
2
2
,9
0
8

IS
S
U
E
S
:S
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
h
o
w
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t 
in
re
g
u
la
r 
d
ro
p
-i
n
s
, 
p
re
fe
rr
in
g
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 w
h
ic
h
 f
it
 w
it
h
 P
S
H
E
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
. 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
V
ic
ti
m
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
, 
m
a
y
 a
ff
e
c
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
F
u
tu
re
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d

G

A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m

M
ik
e
 B
a
g
n
a
ll

T
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r.
  
T
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 k
e
y
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
p
e
a
t 

v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 

v
ic
ti
m
 t
u
rn
e
d
 p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
r.
 T
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 

B
M
E
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 w
it
h
 

a
n
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c
ri
m
e

� ���
G

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\9
\9
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
0
5
9
9
\Q
3
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
1
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 1
0
/0
2
/1
0
 1
8
:0
3

3
 o
f 
5

Page 17



P
ro
je
c
t 
H
ig
h
li
g
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
e
ri
o
d
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
- 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

Last Quarter

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

0
9
/1
0

S
p
e
n
d
 T
o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft
 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/t
a
rg
e
ts
 0
9
/1
0

Y
e
a
r 
to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
ro
je
c
ts

P
ro
je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in
a
n
c
e
s

R
A
G
 S
ta
tu
s

Monitoring Return

C
o
m
 S
tr
a
t 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

F
o
re
ig
n
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
W
o
rk
: 
N
O
 O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
S
 

G
IV
E
N

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f,
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
, 

M
u
s
lim
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
.

K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V
io
le
n
t 
E
x
tr
e
m
is
m
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

to
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
.

 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
v
e
rs
ig
h
t,
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
o
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

to
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 D
ru
g
 

T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
P
la
n

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
c
a
re
r/
u
s
e
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
D
A
A
T
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 o
ff
e
r 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 f
o
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
l 
is
 

w
id
e
ly
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
 a
s
 a
n
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
, 
h
o
lis
ti
c
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
a
th
e
r 
 t
h
a
n
 

a
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 h
a
rm

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm
 t
o
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y

G
G

G
G

G

� ���
G

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r/
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t.
 H
.O
 s
e
n
t 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
o
n
e
y
 t
h
a
n
 o
rg
in
a
lly
 p
ro
fi
le
d
. 
A
w
a
it
in
g
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s

G
A

A
G

P
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V
io
le
n
t 

E
x
tr
e
m
is
m

S
e
a
n
 S
w
e
e
n
e
y

£
1
8
6
,0
0
0

£
8
2
,0
3
5

£
1
0
3
,9
6
5

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r-
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t

D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
M
is
u
s
e

M
a
ri
o
n
 M
o
rr
is

� ���
G

G

£
1
0
0
,0
9
1

G
R

£
2
3
7
,0
0
0

£
1
3
6
,9
0
9

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\9
\9
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
0
5
9
9
\Q
3
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
1
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 1
0
/0
2
/1
0
 1
8
:0
3

4
 o
f 
5

Page 18



P
ro
je
c
t 
H
ig
h
li
g
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt

P
e
ri
o
d
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
- 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

Last Quarter

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

0
9
/1
0

S
p
e
n
d
 T
o
 

D
a
te

B
u
d
g
e
t 
L
e
ft
 t
o
 

S
p
e
n
d

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/t
a
rg
e
ts
 0
9
/1
0

Y
e
a
r 
to
 

d
a
te

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
ro
je
c
ts

P
ro
je
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

F
in
a
n
c
e
s

R
A
G
 S
ta
tu
s

Monitoring Return

C
o
m
 S
tr
a
t 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

N
o
te
: 
T
ra
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
t 
a
n
n
o
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
:

G
re
e
n
 S
ta
tu
s
- 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 o
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
/o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n

A
m
b
e
r 
S
ta
tu
s
- 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 e
n
c
o
u
n
te
re
d
 s
o
m
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
, 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
, 

b
u
t 
h
a
s
 e
it
h
e
r 
n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
r 
te
s
te
d
.

R
e
d
 S
ta
tu
s
- 
D
e
liv
e
y
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
, 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 s
ta
lle
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u
rg
e
n
t 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\9
\9
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
0
5
9
9
\Q
3
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
1
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 1
0
/0
2
/1
0
 1
8
:0
3

5
 o
f 
5

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board   
   
Date:   18 February 2010   
 
Report Title:  Safer Communities Priorities 2010 -11 
 
Report of:  Jean Croot, Corporate Head of Safer Stronger 

Communities  
 

Purpose   
 
To recommend to the SCEB suggested key priorities to be addressed by the 
Partnership during 2010/11, and to invite partners to identify any other key 
priorities or gaps. 
 

Summary 
 
The key priorities recommended below have been taken from the Safer for All 
Strategy 2008/11, using both the Strategic Needs Assessment and the 
National Indicators relevant to this area of work.  
This paper sets out the proposals which, after agreement by SCEB, will be 
developed into an action plan for 2010/11 and brought back to the SCEB in 
June for approval. 
 

Legal/Financial Implications  
 
This work will be funded through core budgets of the partnership agencies, 
supplemented by the Partnership Area Based Grant where appropriate. 
 

Recommendations 
 

1. That SCEB approves the proposed key priorities for 2010/11 and adds 
any missing priorities. 

 
2. That SCEB instructs the Safer Stronger Communities Service to 

develop the key priorities into an action plan for 2010/11 identifying 
lead officers and timescales for each activity required to achieve the 
key priorities. 

 
3. That the appropriate partnership teams (particularly the Community 

Safety Team and Drug & Alcohol Action Team) set their teams’ work 
plans for 2010/11 using these key priorities. 

 

For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Jean Croot 

Agenda Item 6Page 21



 2

Title:  Corporate Head of Safer, Stronger Communities 
Tel: 020 8489 6934 
Email address: jean.croot@haringey.gov.uk 
  

 

Background 

1 The Safer for All Strategy is due to expire in March 2011 and therefore 
a new strategy will be prepared during 2010/11. The key priorities listed below 
have been taken from the current Safer for All Strategy 2008/11. 
 
2 The Partnership also carried out a Strategic Needs Assessment in late 
2010. This highlighted how the Partnership has addressed crime and anti-
social behaviour during the previous year and what work is required to 
continue the very good progress already made to further drive down crime 
and anti-social behaviour in Haringey. 
 
3 It is also important to note the key local performance indicators, taken 
from the National Indicators (NI’s) relevant to this work, when agreeing the 
key priorities for 2010/11. These are as follows; 

• NI 15 Serious violent crime rate 

• NI 16 Serious acquisitive crime rate 

• NI 21 Dealing with local concern about crime and anti-social behaviour 
by the council and police 

• NI 35 Preventing violent extremism 

• NI 37 Public awareness of civil protection arrangements in the local 
area 

• NI 39 Reductions in alcohol-related hospital admissions  

• NI 40 Drug users into effective treatment 

• NI 41 Perceptions of drunk and rowdy behaviour as a problem 

• NI 42 Perceptions of drug use or drug dealing as a problem 

• NI 45 Engagement by young people in suitable education, training and 
employment (ETE) 

• NI 111 Number of young entrants into the Criminal Justice System 
aged 10-17 

 
 
4 Taking all the above into consideration, the key priorities suggested for 
2010/11, with some identified actions to achieve these (in boxes below each 
priority) are: 
 

i. Prevent and reduce serious priority crime (both acquisitive and violent 
crime) and adult re-offending. 

Embed and develop intelligence-led planning, marketing, problem-solving and performance 
monitoring 

Deliver and develop the work of the Gang Action Group (13 - 24 year olds)  

Implement partnership residential burglary action plan 

Implement and develop the reducing adult re-offending action plan 

Analyse and develop a response to crime and disorder around key transport hubs 

Page 22



 3

Further develop the reach and scope of the Q-Car robbery operations 

Produce the next 3-year Community Safety Strategy (inc ASB/hate crime) 

 
 

ii. Prevent and reduce the number of young people involved in crime.  
Promote a positive future for young people, increasing skills and 
educational achievement and contributing to reductions in child poverty 
and improvements in safeguarding children. 

Identify risks and actions to address these in relation to delivering youth justice services 

Monitor referrals to Triage, the youth crime diversion scheme. 

Carry out actions arising from the January 2010 Ofsted inspection and Safeguarding Plan 

Commission targeted youth activity and diversion with proven outcomes (e.g. employment 
and pro-social skills) 

Commission Victim Support to increase support, referral and reporting from young victims 
of crime and anti-social behaviour 

Deliver ASB workshops in Primary and Secondary Schools  

 
 

iii. Increase satisfaction with needs based, community-focused services.  
Improve community perceptions of responses to crime and anti-social 
behaviour and increase local confidence in the criminal justice system. 

Produce and monitor Safer Neighbourhood Panel priorities and  Area Priority Plans 

ASBAT to meet key KPIs: make contact with victim within 24 hours (90%); completion of 
Stage 1 tasks (70%), customer satisfaction levels (70%) 

Deliver the Anti-Social Behaviour Communications Plan 

Deliver key Justice Seen Justice Done priorities  

Support and develop the structures and outcomes from the Community Justice Court 

Establish an effective structure to facilitate 'Community Call to Action' 

 
 

iv. Reduce the harm caused through drug and alcohol misuse.  Tackle 
health inequalities. 

Increase the number of Problematic Drug Users (PDUs) recorded as being in effective 
drug treatment  

 Reduce Alcohol Related Hospital admissions  

Reduce re-offending amongst drug misusing offenders 

Increase the number of all adults over 18 years old recorded as being in effective drug 
treatment to 1369 (a 4% growth on the baseline figure for 2009/10) 

Maintain an effective treatment rate of over 80% for those clients retained in treatment for 
12 weeks or successfully discharged under 12 weeks 

Achieve a successful discharge rate from drug treatment of 60%+  

Health issues to be introduced as a standing item on Area Based Working agendas 

 
 

v. Deliver key actions in the Anti-Social Behaviour and Hate Crime 
Strategies. 

Deliver parenting support to the most prolific families engaging in anti-social behaviour 

Page 23



 4

Improve outcomes for victims and witnesses of anti-social behaviour 

Address and co-ordinate responses to lower-level anti-social behaviour in partnership with 
Housing Services 

Train key teams in availability and use of all anti-social behaviour tools and powers  

Target delivery of the Enviro-crime programme to impact positively on perceptions 

Support and develop the use of localised problem-solving for anti-social behaviour issues, 
accessing relevant funding opportunities 

Implement key standards to support anti-social behaviour outcomes (e.g. Tenancy 
Standards Authority; Secure by Design; Introductory tenancies etc) 

Deliver key actions in the Hate Crime Action Plan 

 
 

vi. Ensure that the Borough is prepared for emergencies and partnership 
agencies have effective business continuity plans in place. 

Protect key sites from terrorist attacks 

Develop and deliver a series of initiatives to inform the public and businesses about 
preparing for emergencies 

Comply with the Minimum Standards for London (in Emergency Planning) Tranche 2 

Review the Council's response to swine flu and severe weather 

Undertake Olympics related contingency planning  

Achieve an RSPCA Award for Animal Welfare for the Contingency Planning Footprint 

Review and ensure the update the Council's Business Continuity Plans; deliver a 
programme of training and exercising for Council officers 

 
 
5. Members are invited to agree the above suggested key priorities and 
identify any gaps, or other key priorities that need inclusion. 
 
6. Members are invited to request that the key priorities agreed are developed 
into an action plan for 2010/11 and brought back to the SCEB in June for 
approval. 
 
 

******************************** 
 

Page 24



 1

 
 
Meeting:   Safer Communities Executive Board   
   
Date:   18 February 2010   
 
Report Title:  Area Based Grant Resource Plans 2010 -11 
 
Report of:  Wayne Longshaw, Assistant Chief Executive 

(PPP&C)  
 

Purpose   
 
To recommend to the SCEB proposals to allocate the Area Based Grant 
(ABG)  and Basic Command Unit (BCU) funds for 2010 - 11, making 
efficiency savings over the allocations given in 2009 – 10. 
 

Summary 
 
The spend of allocations given for 2009 – 10 were reviewed using the 
quarterly monitoring reports. 
 
Although the allocation of these funds to SCEB is largely similar between 
2009 – 10 and 2010 – 11, we are required to seek up to 10% savings to (a) 
provide a possible cushion for the following year, given that we anticipate a 
significant drop in these funds for 2011 – 12; and (b) to ensure the funds are 
used as effectively as possible to drive down crime and anti-social behaviour 
and achieve the national indicators and local targets. 
 

Legal/Financial Implications  
 
The ABG is allocated to the theme boards by the Haringey Strategic 
Partnership (HSP). It is anticipated that there will be a significant reduction in 
these funds to the Borough after 2010 – 11 and this needs to be prepared for 
appropriately. 
 

Recommendations 
 

1. That SCEB approves the proposed reduction from the 2009 – 10 
allocations according to the attached chart, and notes the reasons for 
these recommendations. 

 
2. That SCEB considers how best to utilise savings made, or whether this 

needs guidance from the HSP. 
 

For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Wayne Longshaw 
Title:  Assistant Chief Executive (PPP&C) 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



 2

Tel: 020 8489 2683 
Email address: wayne.longshaw@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 

Background 

1 This report needs to be read in conjunction with the attached chart 
(ABG Efficiency Savings 2010/11 Draft). 
 
2 The SCEB Performance Management Group reviewed the spend of 
allocations given for 2009 – 10 using the quarterly monitoring reports. Those 
funded projects showing red and amber across the ‘Project Performance self 
assessment’ headings were considered first and it is proposed that these not 
be funded next year (2010/11). Those projects which were mainly amber or 
red were next considered and appropriate savings identified (see the column 
to the far right of the chart). Then the remaining projects were discussed to 
identify further possible savings.  
 
3 There were three projects that had already been identified as requiring 
funding during 2010/11 and these were: Haringey Police Organised Crime 
Intelligence project (£30k for enforcement work to address gang-related 
crimes), Gangs Engagement Programme (£20k for engaging with older youth 
gang members: those aged 19+),  and  Reducing Re-offending (£60k for 
reducing re-offending of those aged 18+). 
 
4 The total savings made were as follows: 
 2009/10 ABG spend   = £2,166,100 
 2010/11 ABG proposed spend = £1,982,410 
  Savings recommended = £183,690 
 
 2009/10 BCU spend   = £309,532 
 2010/11 BCU proposed spend = £309,532 
   
5 Members are asked to note the recommendations made in the 
attached chart and the allocation of funds to the overall programme. 
 
6 Members are asked to note the proposed savings of £183,690.  It is 
envisaged that the savings generated will be carried forward to help cushion 
the impact of future reductions in grant from 2011/12. 
 
 

Appendix 

Please see chart attached. 
 

****************************** 

Page 26



A
B

G
 E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

Y
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
D
R
A
F
T

P
ro

je
c
t 

n
a
m

e
L

A
A

 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 

a
ll
ig

n
e
d

 

to
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
tu

a
l

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f

u
n

d
in

g
  

(p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

)

1st  Quarter

2nd  Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

in
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
0
1
0
-

2
0
1
1
 (

D
=

d
is

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

C
=

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

R
=

re
-a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

; 

P
=

p
o

s
s
ib

le
)

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
/V

ic
ti
m

 

W
o
rk

L
o
c
a
l 
 

(v
ic

ti
m

 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 

5
3
,0

0
0

3
8
,0

0
0

A
A

A
G

A
A

G

O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

S
o

m
e

 d
e

la
y
 d

u
e

 

to
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 S
e

p
t.

T
h

is
 c

o
v
e

rs
 a

 l
o

n
g

-s
ta

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 o
f 

V
ic

ti
m

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
tc

h
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 

C
h

ild
re

n
s
' S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t 

(£
3

8
K

).
  

Id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 

L
A

A
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

C
 -

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 V

S
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o
n

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
y
o
u
th

 c
ri
m

e
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

1
1
1
, 
1
1
7

1
1
5
,5

0
0

1
1
5
,5

0
0

G
G

G
A

G
G

G

A
ll 

p
o

s
ts

 f
ill

e
d

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 b
o

th
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 v
io

le
n

c
e

 i
s
 

fa
v
o

u
ra

b
le

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n

d
s
 2

.5
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 Y

O
S

. 
A

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 M
e

n
to

r,
 

D
ru

g
 w

o
rk

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

 F
o

re
ig

n
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

e
r.

C
 -

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

s
 i
s
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 

a
 h

ig
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

P
re

v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V

io
le

n
t 

E
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 F
u
n
d

3
5

2
1
9
,0

0
0

1
8
4
,0

0
0

G
G

A
A

G
G

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
le

v
e

l 
3

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
e

 P
R

E
V

E
N

T
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 l
o

c
a

lly
 i
n

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

N
I3

5
. 

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 a

im
 i
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

C
 -

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

D
ru

g
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 

m
is

u
s
e

3
9
, 
4
0

4
2
0
,4

1
0

4
1
5
,4

1
0

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
S

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
P

u
lle

d
 

in
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
m

o
n

e
y
 f

o
r 

a
lc

o
h

o
l.
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 D
A

A
T

 a
d

u
lt
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s

C
 -

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t
o
 m

in
o
r 

o
v
e
rp

ro
g
ra

m
m

in
g

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

C
C

T
V

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
5
' 1

6
, 
2
1

3
1
,3

0
0

0

A
A

A
G

R
R

R

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

C
T

V
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

u
n

s
u

c
e

s
s
fu

l.
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

 

s
to

p
 g

a
p

s
 t

o
 d

a
te

.

T
h

is
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
w

a
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 C
C

T
V

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
5

0
%

 

is
 f

ro
m

 P
a

rk
in

g

D
 =

 r
e
-a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t
o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

P
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g

1
5
' 1

6
, 
2
1

1
2
5
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

A
A

A
G

R
R

R

S
lo

w
 t

o
 s

p
e

n
d

 b
u

t 
n

o
w

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k
. 

V
a

lu
a

b
le

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

P
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
, 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 i
s
s
u

e
/ 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

s
 

th
e

y
 a

ri
s
e

, 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 a
re

a
-

b
a

s
e

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

. 

C
 -

 H
ig

h
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t
h
is

 i
s
 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
T

o
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P

o
lic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

1
5
' 1

6
, 
2
1

3
6
5
,0

0
0

3
2
5
,0

0
0

A
G

G
G

G
G

A

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
re

c
o

rd
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

ri
o

ir
ty

 c
ri
m

e
 

ty
p

e
s
, 

e
s
p

. 
a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
. 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 

v
io

le
n

t 
c
ri
m

e
 a

 r
e

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
, 

b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
s
ta

n
tl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

. 
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 

s
p

e
n

d
 m

a
y
 o

c
c
u

r 
in

 Q
3

/4

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
ic

 p
o

lic
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 

A
c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri
m

e
s
 a

d
d

in
g

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
u

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

o
v
e

rt
im

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

d
e

ic
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

C
 -

 R
e
m

a
in

s
 s

ta
ti
c
 b

u
t 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
rg

la
ry

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a
t 
1
2
 b

e
lo

w

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

1
5
' 1

6
, 
2
1

4
3
0
,0

0
0

4
2
0
,0

0
0

A
G

G
G

G
A

G

A
ll 

p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
K

e
y
 p

ie
c
e

s
 o

f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
w

o
rk

 w
e

ll 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

N
o

n
 

C
J
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 w

o
rt

h

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 4

 o
f 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
's

 3
5

 L
A

A
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 
T

h
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

ls
o

 f
u

n
d

s
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
ti
c
a

l 
s
ta

ff
 

C
 -

 R
e
m

a
in

s
 s

ta
ti
c
 a

s
 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

  
A

n
y
 s

la
c
k
 t
o
 

b
e
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

A
n
ti
-B

u
rg

la
ry

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

p
ro

je
c
t

1
6

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

G
G

G
G

G
G

A
A

ll 
m

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

V
a

lu
a

b
le

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
s
 a

g
e

d
 5

5
y
rs

 p
lu

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

c
o

n
d

u
c
ti
n

g
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

u
d

it
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
 o

f 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 

S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
1
0
 a

b
o
v
e

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P

o
lic

e
 

O
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 C

ri
m

e
 

In
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 p

ro
je

c
t

1
5

0
3
0
,0

0
0

N
/A

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 g
a

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
ri
m

e
. 

It
 i
s
 a

 

to
p

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 

A
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
o
ile

n
c
e

1
5

8
2
,4

0
0

8
0
,0

0
0

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

P
o

s
ts

 f
ill

e
d

. 
 N

e
w

, 
e

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 l
e

v
e

re
d

 i
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r 

a
b

u
s
e

.T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

's
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
n

d
 h

o
ld

in
g

 a
b

u
s
e

rs
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
.

C
 -

 S
lig

h
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 W

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

o
s
ts

A
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

te
a
m

2
1

2
8
4
,5

0
0

2
8
4
,5

0
0

A
A

G
A

R
G

G
R

u
n

n
in

g
 a

 c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
 o

f 
1

0
0

 m
o

n
th

ly
. 

 

S
tr

o
n

g
 t

ra
c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

n
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

c
o

u
rt

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n

d
s
 c

o
re

 A
S

B
 c

a
s
e

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
 A

S
B

A
T

 d
e

a
ls

 

w
it
h

 c
a

s
e

 w
o

rk
, 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t
C

 -
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

s
 i
s
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 

a
 h

ig
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 S

a
v
in

g
s

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 P

ro
je

c
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 s

e
lf

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

SAFER COMMUNITIES

A
B

G
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  
b

y
 t

h
e
m

e

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 27



A
B

G
 E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

Y
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
D
R
A
F
T

P
ro

je
c
t 

n
a
m

e
L

A
A

 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 

a
ll
ig

n
e
d

 

to
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
tu

a
l

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f

u
n

d
in

g
  

(p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

)

1st  Quarter

2nd  Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

in
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
0
1
0
-

2
0
1
1
 (

D
=

d
is

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

C
=

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

R
=

re
-a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

; 

P
=

p
o

s
s
ib

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 S

a
v
in

g
s

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 P

ro
je

c
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 s

e
lf

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
A

B
G

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  
b

y
 t

h
e
m

e

T
o

ta
l 

2
,1

6
6
,1

1
0

1
,9

8
2
,4

1
0

T
h
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
x
in
g
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
(L
B
A
) 

1
5
,1
6
,1
1
1

3
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l,
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

T
h
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
x
in
g
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
ro
je
c
t 
(L
B
A
) 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

th
ir
te
e
n
 a
n
d
 s
ix
te
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
o
r 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 w
h
o
 a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
d
a
p
t 
to
 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
to
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
to
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 s
o
c
ie
ty
. 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
a
. 
7
9
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s

C
 -
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
N
E
E
T
/E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s

T
h
e
 R
e
fu
g
e
 (
fo
rm

e
rl
y
 

O
ff
 T
h
e
 S
tr
e
e
t 
L
e
s
s
 

H
e
a
t 
(B
W
F
E
))

1
5
,1
6
,1
1
1

7
,5
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,5
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

T
h
e
 R
e
fu
g
e
 r
u
n
s
 o
n
 B
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 
F
a
rm

 E
s
ta
te
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 A
S
B
 l
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
 (
8
p
m
-

m
id
n
ig
h
t)
 d
u
ri
n
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 F
ri
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
 

C
 -
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 

to
 h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

M
e
t 
T
ra
c
k

1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
1
1

1
2
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

0

R
R

R
A

A
R

R

E
a

rl
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
a

s
 p

a
tc

h
y
, 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 

w
a

s
 l
o

w
. 

It
 b

e
c
a

m
e

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 d

id
 n

o
t 

m
a

tc
h

 

th
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 

te
rm

in
a

te
d

.

M
e
t 
T
ra
c
k
 o
ff
e
rs
 s
p
o
rt
 a
s
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 i
n
 l
if
e
 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
s
h
o
w
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 

m
ig
h
t 
n
o
t 
o
th
e
rw
is
e
 g
e
t 
th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
ju
s
t 
h
o
w
 s
p
o
rt
 c
a
n
 

a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 l
iv
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
e
tt
e
r.
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 S
N
T
s
.

D
 -
 C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
M
e
t 
R
o
w
 a
s
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e

T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

F
ir
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (
L
IF
E
) 

1
5
,1
6
, 
2
1
, 
1
1
1

2
5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

L
IF
E
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 f
iv
e
 d
a
y
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
h
a
t 
te
a
c
h
e
s
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
s
 o
f 
1
3
 a
n
d
 1
7
 f
ir
e
 f
ig
h
ti
n
g
 s
k
ill
s
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 r
e
a
l 
fi
re
-f
ig
h
te
rs
.

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
IF
E
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
b
re
a
th
in
g
 

a
p
p
a
ra
tu
s
, 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
y
 r
e
s
c
u
e
, 
h
o
s
e
 l
in
e
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
b
le
m
 

s
o
lv
in
g
 t
a
s
k
s
 –
 a
ll 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

D
 -

 f
e
w

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

J
u
n
io
r 
C
it
iz
e
n
s

1
5
,1
6
,1
1
1

4
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

J
u
n
io
r 
C
it
iz
e
n
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 M
P
S
 f
la
g
s
h
ip
 e
v
e
n
t 
fo
r 
Y
e
a
r 
6
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 

a
s
 t
h
e
y
 p
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r.
  
It
 i
s
 n
o
w
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
a
c
k
lin
g
 k
n
if
e
 c
ri
m
e
 f
o
r 
y
e
a
r 
1
1
s
.

P
 -
 T
h
is
 m
a
y
 n
o
w
 b
e
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
/ 
m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
e
d

V
a
lu
e
 L
if
e
 P
lu
s

1
5
,1
6
,1
1
1

1
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

0

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

V
a
lu
e
 L
if
e
 w
a
s
 i
n
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
G
la
d
e
s
m
o
re
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
in
 2
0
0
2
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 Y
e
a
r 
6
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 

a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
ill
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 o
th
e
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 c
e
le
b
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
ir
 v
o
ic
e
 t
o
 b
e
 h
e
a
rd
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
w
e
a
p
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 v
io
le
n
c
e
.

D
 -
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 j
u
s
ti
fy
 o
n
e
 d
a
y
 a
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
B
C

1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
1
1

4
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
m
a
te
u
r 
B
o
x
in
g
 C
lu
b
 w
a
s
 

fo
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1
9
9
9
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
 s
a
fe
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
ir
 f
it
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
b
ili
ty
 w
h
ile
 d
iv
e
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 f
ro
m
 s
tr
e
e
t 
c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 C
o
a
c
h
e
s
 p
ro
m
o
te
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t,
 h
a
rd
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.

C
 -
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
lo
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
x
in
g
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y

Y
o
u
n
g
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 f
o
r 

S
a
fe
r 
C
it
ie
s
 (
V
O
Y
A
G
E
)

1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
1
1
, 
2
1

2
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
R

R
A

A
A

R

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 B
P

A
 

d
e

s
p

it
e

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

. 
 T

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 

re
c
ru

it
in

g
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r,
 w

e
 a

w
a

it
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 

th
is

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 s
o

m
e

 f
u

n
d

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 f

o
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
.

T
h
e
 M
e
tr
o
p
o
lit
a
n
 B
la
c
k
 P
o
lic
e
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 r
u
n
s
 a
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
im
e
d
 a
t 
ta
c
k
lin
g
 y
o
u
th
 c
ri
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 y
e
a
rs
 9
 

a
n
d
 1
0
 (
8
5
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
).
  
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 m
e
e
t 
ro
le
 

m
o
d
e
ls
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
's
 y
o
u
th
 f
o
ru
m
, 
Y
o
u
n
g
 B
la
c
k
 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 A
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
, 
in
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
y
o
u
n
g
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
.

D
 -
 p
o
o
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
a
k
e
s
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 j
u
s
ti
fy
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 H
a
rm

 f
ro
m
 

W
e
a
p
o
n
s

1
5
, 
1
1
1

7
,5
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
R

R
R

R
R

R

D
e

la
y
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 b
e

in
g

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 M

P
A

 

h
a

s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
re

v
is

e
d

 

s
p

e
n

d
 p

la
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
.

T
h
is
 f
u
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 w
e
a
p
o
n
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 "
F
e
a
r 
o
r 

F
a
s
h
io
n
" 
m
o
d
e
l 
(e
.g
. 
'W

h
a
t's
 t
h
e
 P
o
in
t?
', 
'in
s
id
e
, 
o
u
t!
')

P
 -
 C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d

BASIC COMMAND UNIT - BCU PROJECT FUND (Police/MPA)

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 28



A
B

G
 E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

Y
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
D
R
A
F
T

P
ro

je
c
t 

n
a
m

e
L

A
A

 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 

a
ll
ig

n
e
d

 

to
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
tu

a
l

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f

u
n

d
in

g
  

(p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

)

1st  Quarter

2nd  Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

in
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
0
1
0
-

2
0
1
1
 (

D
=

d
is

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

C
=

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

R
=

re
-a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

; 

P
=

p
o

s
s
ib

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 S

a
v
in

g
s

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 P

ro
je

c
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 s

e
lf

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
A

B
G

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  
b

y
 t

h
e
m

e

F
o
re
n
s
ic
 n
u
rs
e
s

1
5
, 
1
6

2
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
C
T
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
s
y
c
h
ia
tr
ic
 N
u
rs
e
s
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
o
lic
e
 c
u
s
to
d
y
, 

lin
k
in
g
/r
e
-l
in
k
in
g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 
 T
h
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
ft
e
n
 b
ri
d
g
e
s
 

th
e
 g
a
p
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
m
. 
T
h
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
ill
 

e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
9
.0
0
a
m
 t
o
 9
.0
0
p
m
.

C
 -
 G
o
o
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r
e
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e

R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
s
 

A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s

1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
1
1

1
2
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

R
G

A
A

A

3
2
 t
e
a
c
h
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
c
ro
s
s
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 w
e
re
 t
ra
in
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

in
 r
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
, 
a
 t
e
c
h
n
iq
u
e
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
. 
 I
t 
is
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 6
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
o
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
in
g
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
.

C
- 
U
s
e
 £
5
k
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
io
n
 a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

C
Y
P
S
 t
o
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
.

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

2
1

5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0

R
R

R
G

A
A

R

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.

T
h
is
 f
u
n
d
 w
ill
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 

a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
lo
c
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly

D
 -
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 M
P
S
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

c
o
m
m
a
n
d
e
r'
s
 f
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 w
o
rk

S
N
T
/N
H
W
 L
in
k
 O
ff
ic
e
r

1
5
, 
1
6
, 
2
1
, 
3
5

3
5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

R

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

 P
ro

je
c
ti
n

g
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
, 

o
w

in
g

 t
o

 s
a

la
ry

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 T
h
e
 W

a
tc
h
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 W

a
tc
h
e
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
r 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 t
e
a
m
s
. 
T
h
e
 W

a
tc
h
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
o
in
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 
b
o
th
 w
a
tc
h
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
rs
, 
w
a
tc
h
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e
. 
A
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
f 
1
2
0
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 1
5
0
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 s
o
 f
a
r

C
 -
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
.g
. 
h
a
ll 
h
ir
e
, 

p
u
b
lic
it
y
 e
tc

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
e
a
c
e
 W

e
e
k
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y

1
5
, 
1
6
, 
3
5
, 
1
1
1

1
2
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

 T
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 W

e
e
k
 o
f 
P
e
a
c
e
 c
o
m
b
in
e
s
 a
 h
o
s
t 
o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 c
e
le
b
ra
ti
n
g
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
, 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
It
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
a
s
t 
fe
w
 y
e
a
rs
, 
it
 a
ls
o
 r
u
n
s
 L
o
n
d
o
n
-w
id
e

D
 -
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 

th
is
 w
e
e
k
 o
f 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 o
f 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

2
1

1
2
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
,5
3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

H
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

T
h
is
 f
u
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
N
I 
2
1
.

C
 -
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a

N
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s

1
5
,1
6
,2
1
,3
5

7
,5
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,5
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
R

R
A

A
A

R

D
e

la
y
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 b
e

in
g

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 M

P
A

 

h
a

s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
re

v
is

e
d

 

s
p

e
n

d
 p

la
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
.

T
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
e
a
c
e
 

A
lli
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
h
e
m
e
s
.

T
o
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 g
re
a
te
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
 -
 C
la
ri
ty
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 t
h
is
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
/o
r 

c
ri
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m

1
5
,1
6
,2
1
,1
1
1

3
,0
3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
R

R
A

A
A

R

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.

T
h
is
 t
e
a
m
 o
f 
B
&
M
E
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
o
lic
e
 w
ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 m
e
n
to
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
y
 w
ill
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 

M
P
S
 a
t 
e
v
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
in
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 "
d
o
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
th
in
g
".

D
 o
r 
R
 -
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
re
a
lig
n
m
e
n
t 
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
£
5
k
 f
o
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
/F
a
it
h
 F
o
ru
m
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r

F
a
it
h
 f
o
ru
m

1
5
,1
6
,2
1
,3
5

5
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
R

R
G

G
G

R

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.

T
h
is
 f
u
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 f
a
it
h
 f
o
ru
m
 w
o
rk
 w
h
e
re
 

fa
it
h
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 m
e
e
t 
to
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 

m
a
k
e
 t
o
 c
ri
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
a
fe
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 T
o
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 i
n
te
r-
fa
it
h
 n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 f
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
a
fe
ty
 

fa
it
h
 r
e
la
te
d
 m
a
tt
e
rs

S
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e

K
ic
k
z

1
5
,1
6
,2
1
,1
1

1

4
2
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
H

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l,
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

a
llo

w
e

d
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

K
ic
k
z
 i
s
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
2
-1
8
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
o
tb
a
ll 
a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
c
lu
b
 

C
 -
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 

P
M
G
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

BASIC COMMAND UNIT - BCU PROJECT FUND (Police/MPA)

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 29



A
B

G
 E

F
F

IC
IE

N
C

Y
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
D
R
A
F
T

P
ro

je
c
t 

n
a
m

e
L

A
A

 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 

a
ll
ig

n
e
d

 

to
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
tu

a
l

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f

u
n

d
in

g
  

(p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

)

1st  Quarter

2nd  Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

in
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
0
1
0
-

2
0
1
1
 (

D
=

d
is

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

C
=

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
; 

R
=

re
-a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

; 

P
=

p
o

s
s
ib

le
)

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 S

a
v
in

g
s

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 P

ro
je

c
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 s

e
lf

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
A

B
G

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  
b

y
 t

h
e
m

e

T
o

ta
l 

3
0
9
,5

3
2

  
  
  
  

2
2
9
,5

3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

G
a
n
g
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

1
9
+

)

2
0
,0

0
0

S
p
e
c
ia
lis
e
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
' b
u
ild
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
 

o
ld
e
r 
y
o
u
th
s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 g
a
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
r 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  
D
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

w
it
h
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 (
fu
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
-s
o
lv
in
g
 i
n
 

0
9
/1
0
)

C
 -
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 

to
 h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 (
w
a
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

p
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
)

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 R

e
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 (

in
c
 

d
ia

m
o
n
d
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

6
0
,0

0
0

P
ro
je
c
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
rt
 

H
e
lp
 D
e
s
k
 a
n
d
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
 d
ia
m
o
n
d
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
m
o
d
e
l.
  
C
lo
s
e
 

lia
is
o
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
tc
h
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
e
.g
. 
fr
o
m
 

W
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 b
u
d
g
e
ts

R
 -
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
s
 r
e
-a
llo
c
a
te
d
  
d
u
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
le
v
e
ri
n
g
 

in
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s

B
C

U
 T

O
T

A
L

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
3
0
9
,5

3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

NEW BCU PROJECTS 

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 30



 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board     
 
Date:   18 February  2010 
 
Report Title: Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme (HARRP) 

Action Plan 2010/2011 
 
Report of: Michael Buraimoh – Reducing Re-offending Officer 
 

Summary 
 
This report summarises the strategic work carried out so far as well as the 
planned delivery of the reducing re-offending strategy in the borough. 
Although the initial funding will be for the first year of delivery, the programme 
is expected to last a minimum of 2 years for it’s effectiveness to be 
measurable (based on the working definition of re-offending). 
 

Recommendations 
 
That board members note the activity and progress over the coming year in 
support of the reducing re-offending agenda. 
 

Financial/Legal Comments 
 
Funding has been allocated from the Safer Communities Area Based Grant to 
cover the salary cost of the Reducing Re-offending Officer. An operating 
budget has been allocated from the BCU fund. 
 

For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Michael Buraimoh 
Title:  Reducing Re-offending Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2661 
Email address: Michael.Buraimoh@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
 
Background 
 
1. Introduction 
 
In 2008 the Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) and Community Safety Team 
(CST) commissioned research into re-offending and resettlement.  The key 
recommendation of this work was to establish a project management post to work 
with a multi-disciplinary officer group to produce and co-ordinate a comprehensive 
reducing adult re-offending action plan.  
 
The following outputs have now been achieved: 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 31



1. A Reducing Re-offending officer was recruited in November 2009. 
2. A multi-agency steering group comprising of representatives of key 

services and agencies, has been set up and has held two meetings since 
inception. 

3. One year delivery Action plan (included with this report) has been 
developed. 

4. Key delivery partnerships with voluntary, private and public sector 
organisations have been initiated. 

 
2.  The Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme (HARRP)  
 
General Objective: To significantly reduce the risk of re-offending among non-
statutory adult offenders through a case management-focused partnership effort 
to provide coordinated resettlement-driven services.  
 
This involves developing a local reducing re-offending action plan. The plan 
identifies strategies and actions to address problems that lead to repeat offending 
among Haringey residents sentenced to less than 12 months.  
 
The Specific Objectives are: 
 

• To map existing services accessible by beneficiaries around the 7 
pathways to resettlement and identify service gaps. 

• To develop and deliver the ‘Work Works’ model of ex-offender employment 
and training support, to 8 providers. 

• To facilitate ease of access to further Education for beneficiaries. 

• To create and manage the Haringey Network of Socially Responsible 
Employers (HANSRE). 

• To identify and recruit 30 project beneficiaries from the prison system. 

• To work with beneficiaries to assess their resettlement needs and develop 
Individual Resettlement Plan (IRP); as well as to manage the stage by 
stage delivery of the IRP. 

• To develop a social enterprise scheme and support 5 beneficiaries in social 
entrepreneurship. 

• To facilitate access to the Housing and Options Team’s Rent Deposit 
Scheme.  

• To create and manage the Haringey Reducing re-offending network 
(HARREN) to achieve seamless service delivery to beneficiaries across 
pathways.   

• To track beneficiaries (aftercare) and provide ongoing support as may be 
required. 

 
HARRP will expectedly continue to evolve in order to always remain relevant, in 
line with any new developments and emerging best practices. 
 
3. Scope 
 
The London Borough Offender Profile Report reveals that adult Haringey 
residents who are non-statutory offenders/ex-offenders sentenced to either 
custodial (particularly in Pentonville and Holloway prisons) or community 
sentences make up over 60% of re-offenders in Haringey. The Reducing Re-
offending Programme will only target this group, as despite being the majority of 
repeat offenders, no agency has the statutory obligation to supervise or 

Page 32



coordinate efforts to effectively resettle them following their prison terms. HARRP 
will work with these offenders before, during and after imprisonment. It will also 
provide access to services for offenders’ families. 
 
4. Project Team Structure/Reporting Arrangements 
 

Project Management: The Project will be managed by the Reducing Re-
offending Officer (RRO), who will report to the Policy Officer. The RRO will be 
responsible for the case workers. 
 
Project Steering Group: The project steering group is a multi agency group 
providing strategic support and direction to the programme. It consists of: 
 

• Eliza Meechan – Senior Safer Communities Policy Officer 

• Andy James – Drug and Alcohol Action Team 

• Dennis Dollery - MPS Criminal Justice Unit 

• Sarah Walbank – Probation 

• Denise Gandy – Head of Housing Support and Options 

• Liz Crisp - Supporting People Project Officer 

• Stephen Carroll - Haringey Courts Services 

• Ambrose Quashie - Employment and Skills Policy Officer 

• Michael Buraimoh – Reducing Re-offending Officer 

• Elaine Cunnea – Neighbourhood Crime & Justice Co-ordinator 

• Claire Kowalska – Community Safety Manager 
 
 

5. Summary of expected Outcomes 
 

• Beneficiaries do not re-offend within at least two years of engagement on 
HARRP. 

• Clear lines of accountability and infrastructure for managing offenders 
sentenced to less than 12 months 

• Sustainable partnership is developed with statutory and voluntary 
organisations  

• Sustainable and active network of socially responsible employers in 
Haringey 

• A sustainable resource for managing offenders sentenced to less than 12 
months  

• Improved community involvement in offender resettlement and rehabilitation 
 
 
6. Summary of Milestones  
 

No Milestone Time Frame Milestone 
Owner 

1 Present Action Plan to SCEB  February 2010 MB & EM 

2 Reducing Re-offending 
Conference 

March 2010 MB & EM 

3 Recruitment of Case Worker(s) March – April 
2010 

HR 

4 Creation of Haringey Reducing Re-
offending Network (HARREN) 

March – April 
2010 

MB & EM 

5 Creation of Haringey Network of August 2010 MB & AQ 

Page 33



Socially Responsible Employers 
(HANSRE) 

6 Work Works Training programme May – June 2010 MB & AQ 

7 Work Works Seminar Feb 2011 MB & AQ 

8 Commissioning of the Reducing 
Re-offending Social Enterprise 
Project 

July – August 
2010 

MB 

 
 
 
7. Risks and mitigating action  
 

Risk  Impact 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
(H/M/L) 

Mitigation Plan 
Summary 

There is a risk that the 
recruitment process (of case 
workers) will be slow which 
would lead to delays in the 
project. 

H M • The Reducing Re-

offending Officer will 

cover in as much as 

is possible to ensure 

project kicks off as 

planned. 

There is a risk of inadequate 
funding leading to inability to 
fully implement action plan, 
especially with the social 
enterprise project. 

 
H 

 
M 

• The private sector 

will be engaged to 

achieve funding 

where feasible. 

However the Social 

Enterprise Project 

might become a 

future project 

There is a risk of a lack of 
commitment from key 
partners which could lead to 
problems with establishing 
an effective multi-agency 
approach and sharing 
information as well as co-
funding. 

M M • Good practice from 

other partnership 

approaches within 

Haringey and from 

Tower Hamlets will 

be implemented 

where appropriate 

There is a risk that future 
funding to deliver the action 
plan may not be available – a 
risk of discontinuity 

H M • An evidence base 

demonstrating the 

argument for 

investment will be 

developed  

Page 34



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 P

la
n

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
(u
s
e
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 f
o
rm
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
) 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f:
 

(i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
) 

 T
o
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 R

is
k
 o
f 
R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 N
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

 

 M
ic
h
a
e
l 
B
u
ra
im

o
h
 –
 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 P
la

n
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

: 
(s
ta
te
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
P
la
n
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
) 

 C
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 B
e
tt
e
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
: 
c
le
a
n
e
r,
 g
re
e
n
e
r,
 s
a
fe
r.
 

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
is

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
; 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 k

e
y
 l

o
c

a
l 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

 
Ø
 
N
I 
3
0
 R

e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
 o
f 
p
ro
lif
ic
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 H
O
 D

S
O
 

Ø
 
N
I 
1
6
 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 P
S
A
 2
3
 

  A
c

ti
v
it

y
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

: 
(l
is
t 
k
e
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 o
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
) 

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
C

o
s

t/
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

D
u

e
 d

a
te

 
(s
ta
te
 m
o
n
th
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
) 

R
A

G
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 

 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
 

1
. 
T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
m
a
p
p
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 b
y
 n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
v
e
n
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
s
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 
G
re
e
n
 

2
. 
T
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 

(H
A
R
R
E
N
) 
o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 7
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
  

 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
£
5
,0
0
0
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

Page 35



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

: 
(l
is
t 
k
e
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 o
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
) 

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
C

o
s

t/
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

D
u

e
 d

a
te

 
(s
ta
te
 m
o
n
th
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
) 

R
A

G
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 

3
. 
T
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 c
le
a
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 s
e
a
m
le
s
s
 c
ro
s
s
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
m
o
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

4
. 
T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 

n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
, 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 (
T
o
 

in
fo
rm

 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
).
  

L
e
o
 

K
e
a
rs
e
/P
e
te
r 

D
e
 B
o
u
rg
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 
A
m
b
e
r 

5
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
ri
s
o
n
s
, 
p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
re
c
ru
it
in
g
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 
A
m
b
e
r 

6
. 
T
o
 r
e
c
ru
it
 o
n
e
 c
a
s
e
 w
o
rk
e
r.
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
£
3
6
,6
0
0
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
 2
0
1
0
 

 

7
. 
T
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 H
A
R
R
P
 c
o
re
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 b
y
 p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
t 
a
ll 
7
 a
re
a
 a
s
s
e
m
b
lie
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

w
a
rd
 p
a
n
e
ls
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

8
. 
T
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
 a
n
 i
n
te
r-
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

fo
ru
m
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
£
2
0
0
 

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 

 

9
. 
T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 S
L
A
s
 w
it
h
 p
ri
s
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 C

O
N
E
L
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

Page 36



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 

1
. 
T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 e
m
p
lo
y
a
b
ili
ty
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H
A
R
R
P
 

P
ro
je
c
t.
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 
A
m
b
e
r 

2
. 
T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 ‘
W
o
rk
 W

o
rk
s
’ 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

(i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra
n
te
e
) 
to
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
h
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
a
b
ili
ty
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
x
-o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 &
 

A
m
b
ro
s
e
 

Q
u
a
s
h
ie
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
 

 

3
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 ‘
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra
n
te
e
’ 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
ro
je
c
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

4
. 
T
o
 c
re
a
te
 (
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
) 
a
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
S
o
c
ia
lly
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 (
H
A
N
S
R
E
) 

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 &
 

A
m
b
ro
s
e
 

Q
u
a
s
h
ie
 

 
£
2
0
0
 

 
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

 

5
. 
T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 1
0
 n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 e
x
-o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 c
o
lle
g
e
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
a
b
ili
ty
, 
in
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
O
N
E
L
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

6
. 
T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
-w

o
rk
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

e
x
-o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 
W
o
rk
 W

o
rk
s
-

tr
a
in
e
d
 A
d
v
is
e
rs
 

&
 C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

7
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 T
e
a
m
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 s
o
c
ia
l 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
(S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
) 
to
 t
ra
in
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 g
ra
n
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
5
 n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 e
x
-o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 (
s
o
c
ia
l 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
T
B
C
 

 
T
B
C
 

 

Page 37



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
rs
).
 

Page 38



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
A

tt
it

u
d

e
, 

T
h

in
k

in
g

 a
n

d
 B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

1
. 
T
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
 i
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

2
. 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o
f 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 

c
u
s
to
d
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

3
. 
T
o
 e
m
p
o
w
e
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
tt
it
u
d
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
to
 f
ro
n
tl
in
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
A
R
R
P
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

4
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
4
E
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 e
x
-o
ff
e
n
d
e
r-
le
d
 

m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
  
 

 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
£
5
,0
0
0
 

 
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

 

Page 39



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
A

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 

 

1
. 
T
o
 c
a
rr
y
o
u
t 
a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 m

a
p
p
in
g
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
it
h
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
in
k
 t
o
 H
A
R
R
P
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 
G
re
e
n
 

2
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

m
in
im

is
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

s
e
n
te
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 1
6
 w
e
e
k
s
 o
r 
le
s
s
. 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

4
. 
T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 O

p
ti
o
n
’s
 r
e
n
t 

d
e
p
o
s
it
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
£
1
5
, 
0
0
0
 

 
F
e
b
 2
0
1
1
 

 

Page 40



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
D

ru
g

s
 a

n
d

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 

1
. 
T
o
 r
e
fe
r 
a
n
d
 t
ra
c
k
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 D
IP
. 
 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

2
. 
T
o
 r
e
fe
r 
a
n
d
 t
ra
c
k
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
T
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 H
A
G
A
. 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

3
. 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

p
ri
s
o
n
-b
a
s
e
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

Page 41



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
M

e
n

ta
l 

a
n

d
 P

h
y
s

ic
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 

1
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ri
s
o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
w
h
ile
 i
n
 c
u
s
to
d
y
. 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

2
. 
T
o
 t
ra
c
k
, 
w
it
h
in
 H
A
R
R
P
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
/t
ra
c
k
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
 G

o
in
g
 

 

3
. 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
/h
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
/C
a
s
e
 

W
o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 

4
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 N

H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 (
S
t.
 A
n
n
’s
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l)
 t
o
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
W
o
rk
in
g
 f
o
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
je
c
t 
(H

e
a
lt
h
 

C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
. 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 

Page 42



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
il

ie
s
 

1
. 
T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 

R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
o
rt
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

2
. 
T
o
 c
a
p
tu
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
r’
s
 f
a
m
ily
 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
A
R
R
P
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

3
. 
T
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 I
R
P
 t
o
 p
la
n
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 

w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 C

H
R
Y
S
A
L
IS
. 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

Page 43



R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
- 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
F

in
a

n
c

e
, 
B

e
n

e
fi

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

b
t 

1
. 
T
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
a
t 
a
llo
w
s
 f
o
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 

P
lu
s
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
r 
s
o
o
n
-t
o
-b
e
-r
e
le
a
s
e
d
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
  
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
 

 

2
. 
T
o
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 C

it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

3
. 
T
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fu
n
d
 f
o
r 
im

m
e
d
ia
te
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 I
n
te
rv
ie
w
 c
lo
th
in
g
 e
tc
 (
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

fu
n
d
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
) 
 

 
C
a
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

 
£
3
 0
0
0
 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

4
. 
T
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
c
e
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
(a
n
d
 s
im

ila
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
) 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
is
b
u
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
g
ra
n
ts
 f
o
r 
e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
rs
h
ip
s
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

  
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

  
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

5
. 
T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 a
n
 h
ig
h
 s
tr
e
e
t 
b
a
n
k
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
p
e
n
in
g
) 
to
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
ri
e
s
 

 
M
ic
h
a
e
l 

B
u
ra
im

o
h
 

  
O
ff
ic
e
r 
T
im

e
 

 
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

 

 

Page 44



                                                                                 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 
Briefing for: 
 

 
Safer Communities 
Executive Board 

 
Item 
number 

 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Haringey Emergency Alert Service 

 

Lead Officer: 
 

Andrew Meek, Emergency Planning and Business 
Continuity Manager 
 

 

 
Date: 
 

 
14th January 2010 

 

 
Cabinet member 
input and 
introduction 
 

The Council has a statutory duty to communicate with  
the public to warn and inform people about 
emergencies.  Text messaging is the most accessible 
format for many people, and provides a means for 
getting information to many people as quickly as 
possible. 
 
This service will operate with ward based contact lists 
to ensure messages are relevant locally, and a 
borough-wide list to keep key stakeholders informed. 

 
 
1. Purpose of this paper 
 
To inform and advise SCEB Members about the Haringey Emergency Alert service. 
 
2. Background and context 
 
The Council, along with the emergency services and a number of other agencies, have 
a statutory duty under the Civil Contingencies Act to put in place systems to provide 
information to the public about emergencies.  This takes two forms: 
- Information to help people prepare for emergencies themselves 
- Systems to warn and inform people in the event of an emergency. 
 
A number of boroughs, and other local authorities have put in place mass messaging 
systems to alert the public about potential emergencies.    
 
3. The text alert system 
 
The Haringey Emergency Alert system will send a text message to all those who have 
subscribed to the service, to make them aware of emergencies is a timely manner.   
 
Text messages are the best format for messages for most people, because they are 
quick, simple and will reach people wherever they happen to be.  But the system can 

Agenda Item 10Page 45



                                                                                 

Page 2 of 4 

send messages email, landline, or fax  and these options will be made available to 
ensure accessibility, as required under the Disability Discrimination Act. 
 
The system will be set up with ward contact lists to make the messages locally relevant.  
There will also be a borough wide list to ensure key stakeholders are made aware of 
any serious incident in the borough. 
 
 
4. The messages 
 
Standard messages have been developed which can be adapted for the incident at the 
time of need.  These messages are designed to be factual, non-alarmist and with a 
clear call to action.   
 
 

o Severe Weather 
 

“<Insert weather – e.g. Heavy snow> is expected within the next few hours, 
please avoid travelling where possible.  Tune into TV or Radio forecasts for 
more information” 

 
o Stay away 

 
“An incident has occurred in <insert area>.  Police cordons are in place.  Please 
avoid the area if possible.    For more information go to www.haringey.gov.uk” 

 
o Stay in [e.g. in case of an air quality incident] 

 
“An incident has occurred in <insert area>.   Please stay inside if at all possible.  
We will keep you advised of developments. For more information go to 
www.haringey.gov.uk” 
 
o Evacuation 

 
“Due to an incident in <insert area> you may be advised by the Emergency 
Services or Council to leave your home.   Please ensure you are prepared.” 

 
 
 
It is not proposed to use the system for routine communication of a non-urgent nature.  
By limiting its use to emergencies it is anticipated that residents will be more likely to 
recognise the urgency of the message and act appropriately. 
 
5. Marketing and subscription 
 
Initially, sign up to the service will be via email response to the Emergency Planning 
team.   The following key groups will be approached as key community stakeholders: 

o Councillors and MPs 
o Faith leaders 
o Community and voluntary sector groups 
o Schools and other education facilities 

Page 46



                                                                                 

Page 3 of 4 

o Residents associations 
o Traders associations and business organisations 
o GPs / Community Health Centres 
o Social care providers 

 
It is proposed to extend the service thereafter to residents at large via: 

o Subscription via the Haringey website 
o Invitation to callers to the Contact Centre 
o Inclusion in various public awareness initiatives. 

 
The service will become a key component of the awareness raising activities of the 
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Team.  Particular attention will paid to 
extending the service to vulnerable people. 
 
It is accepted that an English-language service may not be as accessible for some 
members of the community.  Translating messages is not practicable, and it is believed 
that in many cases family members will be able to interpret for those with weak English 
language skills.   
 
6. Controls 
 
It will be important to strike a balance between ensuring the timeliness of the warning 
being issued, and the need to maintain consistency and appropriateness of tone in 
communicating with the public. 
 
Haringey Emergency Alert Service will be operated by the Emergency Planning and 
Business Continuity Manager or the duty Emergency Planning Officer.   Messages will 
be approved prior to being sent by one of the following (depending on availability) 

• Cabinet Member for Enforcement and Safer Community Safety 

• Corporate Head of Safer Stronger Communities 

• A CEMB member 

• Duty press officer, Head of Communications or Communications Manager.   
 
7. Costs 
 
The service will cost the Council £250 per month, plus 6p per message if over 500 
messages are sent.  This threshold is unlikely to be reached unless a borough-wide 
emergency notification needs to be sent. 
 
The chosen provider is PageOne Communications.  This is separate from the Council’s 
main provider for text messaging because they provide greater guarantees of 
availability and security for the service.  PageOne Communications are widely used 
within the NHS, and are government-approved for major incident communication. 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Limitations 
 

Page 47



                                                                                 

Page 4 of 4 

It is important to note that the Council cannot and should not guarantee to send a 
message, but will make every reasonable endeavour to do so.   The service can be 
operated out of hours, without office access.  
 
9. Neighbourhood Link 
 
The Metropolitan Police Service are rolling out a service across London called 
“Neighbourhood Link”, which will also issue text messages.  This remains at an early 
stage, and its emphasis is unclear.  It is expected that it will issue some security and 
terrorism-related alerts, as well as more general crime information. 
 
Focus groups have shown that different parts of the community will react differently to 
information from different agencies.  It is also our experience that different agencies do 
not always have a shared view of what information is their responsibility to issue to the 
public.  As a result, the guidance from the London Resilience Team is that boroughs 
should develop and maintain their own system, and be prepared to pass on appropriate 
messages from Neighbourhood Link. 
 
If it proves appropriate to merge the two services at a later date, there will be no 
financial penalty associated with doing so. 
 
 

Page 48



 

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board 
 
Date:   18 February 2010 
 
Report:   SCEB Risk Register 
 
Report by:    Head of Safer Stronger Communities, Haringey 

Council Police Projects Officer 
    
 
Background 
 
Risk Management is a core part of how the Council and other partners 
manage their business.   It is consider to be good practice that all partnership 
boards have risk registers in place to demonstrate that partners are actively 
managing the risks to their theme areas. 
 
These risk registers should be informed by the risks and concerns of all 
partners; and should demonstrate a shared assessment of most serious risks, 
and joint commitment to act to mitigate them. 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to enable a discussion amongst members of the 
SCEB leading to the production of a Risk Register. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That partners agree the actions proposed below to produce the SCEB Risk 
Register, and hold the initial discussion to identify the key risks. 
 
Actions 
 

• A discussion should be held to allow risks to be identified.  A number of 
risks that SCEB may wish to consider are proposed below. 

 

• The Council will compile a draft Risk Register based on this discussion. 
 

• This will be circulated for comments, and to ensure mitigating actions are 
identified. 

 

• The final SCEB Risk Register will be presented for approval at the following 
SCEB. 

 

Agenda Item 11Page 49



• Partners will be asked to report on progress against the agreed actions on 
an ongoing basis. 

 
Guidance 
 
The Risk Matrix is given at Annex A of this report.  Risks should be identified 
that partners agree significantly affect the performance of the SCEB, and 
impede the ability of the SCEB to meet its strategic objectives.  It may be 
helpful for partners to consider the following questions. 
 

• Which objectives feel least likely to be achieved, and why? 
 

• What factors might significantly affect performance? 
 

• What concerns do partners have around funding of services or projects? 
 

• What could particularly damage the reputation of the Safer Communities 
Partnership? 

 

• Is there anything that could occur that would lead to reassessment of 
priorities? 

 

• What keeps you awake at night? 
 
 
The matrix should be filled out as follows 
 

1. The risk is identified as a possible future event with negative 
consequences – e.g. “Funding may be withdrawn from service X, 
leading to increase in crime of type Y”. 

 
2. The controls that are currently in place are identified – in other words 

what people  
 

3. The likelihood and impact are scored using the scale at Annex B. 
 

4. Further actions are then identified with an owner and target date. 
 
 
 

It is recommended that no more than 10 or 12 risks are contained in the Risk 
Register.  While it is usually possible to identify many more risks than this, it 
will be more effective to ensure focus on the key risks facing the partnership. 

Page 50



Annex A:  Risk Matrix 
 
 

Mitigated Risk 
Score 

Ref Risk Controls in place 

Likelihoo
d 

Impact 

Further Actions in Place (& due date) Owner 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

1



Annex B: Impact and Likelihood Scales - to be used as a guide in assessing risk ratings 

Descriptor  Impact Guide  Likelihood Guide 

 
1 
 
2 
 
 
3 
 
 
4 
 
 
5 
 
 
6 
 
 
 
7 
 
 
8 
 
 
 
9 
 
 

  
No impact 
 
Financial loss up to £5,000 or no impact outside single objective or no adverse 
publicity 
 
Financial loss up to £10,000 or no impact outside single objective or no adverse 
publicity 
 
Financial loss up to £50,000 or minor regulatory consequence or some impact on 
other objectives 
 
Financial loss up to £100,000 or impact on other objectives or local adverse 
publicity or strong regulatory criticism 
 
Financial loss up to £300,000 or impact on many other processes or local adverse 
publicity or regulatory sanctions (such as intervention, public interest reports) 
 
Financial loss up to £500,000 or impact on strategic level objectives or national 
adverse publicity or strong regulatory sanctions  
 
Financial loss up to £1 million or impact at strategic level or national adverse 
publicity or Central Government take over administration 
 
Financial loss above £1 million or major impact at strategic level or 
closure/transfer of business 

 
 

 
<1% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
1%-5% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
5%-10% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
10%-20% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
20%-30% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
30%-40% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
 
40%-60% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
60%-80% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
 
>80% likely to occur in next 12 months 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



 

 
 
Meeting:   Safer Communities Executive Board  
 
Date:    18 February 2010 
 
Report Title:  Scrutiny Review – Support to Victims of Crime 
 
Report From:   Councillor Ron Aitken 
 

Purpose 
 
To provide Board members with an overview of the findings of the scrutiny 
review on support to victims of crime. 
 

Background 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee established an in depth scrutiny review 
on support to victims of crime.  This has been undertaken by a small panel of 
non executive Councillors who have interviewed representatives from a wide 
range of local partners and organisations, as well as considering a range of 
written evidence.  The Panel have now come to their conclusions and made a 
range of recommendations, which this report briefly outlines.  A final report will 
be drafted for approval by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 15 March.  
Following this, the report will be considered by the Council’s Cabinet, who will 
commission a joint response to it on behalf of local partners and collated by 
the Community Safety team. 
 
Key issues for consideration 
 
Board Members are requested to note the findings of the review. 
 

Legal/Financial Implications 
 
Financial Implications 
 

This report does not give rise to any immediate financial implications. 
However, it should be noted that where possible all reviews will have a 
Value for Money aspect. 

 
Legal Implications 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has powers to scrutinise decisions 
taken in the discharge of the Council’s “executive” and “non-executive” 
functions and to make reports and recommendations to Cabinet and Full 
Council. This includes making reports and recommendations on matters 

Agenda Item 13Page 53



relating to health services and other matters affecting the Borough or its 
inhabitants. The annual work programme for Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is a matter of local choice. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

For more information contact: 
 
Contact: Rob Mack, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer 
Tel: 0208 489 2921 
Email: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 

 
1. Report 
 

1.1. The Panel noted that there are a very wide range of services that 
provide support for victims and witnesses. Indeed, the number of 
different agencies and organisations that can potentially be involved 
can be a source of confusion, which is aggravated by the similarity 
in names of certain of the bodies involved e.g. the Witness Care 
Unit and the Witness Service.  In addition, there appears to be 
some areas of overlap.  The majority of this has occurred as a 
consequence of successive government initiatives to address the 
issue. 

 
1.2. The Panel was of the view that there was a need for greater clarity 

on strategic responsibilities.  A number of individuals that the review 
heard from felt that there was a need for better co-ordination and 
establishing clear governance structures as well as ownership of 
the issue would assist in addressing this.  Once established, this 
should provide the opportunity to look strategically at current 
provision and address any areas of overlap and duplication as well 
as developing a joint local plan for improving services.  

 
1.3. The lead responsibility for taking the lead on victim and witness 

issues lies with the Local Criminal Justice Board (LCJB) rather then 
SCEB.  Whilst many of the agencies on SCEB are also on the 
LCJB, there are some key ones that are not formally represented.  
There are also a number of areas of overlapping responsibilities as 
well as some where there is an inter dependency.  The Home Office 
encourages closer collaboration between LCJBs and CDRPs and 
the Panel feels that this should be explored. 

 
1.4. The Panel was concerned that it appears that not all vulnerable and 

intimidated witnesses are currently being identified in a timely 
manner and that they are sometimes arriving at the Magistrates 
Court without support agencies and the Court having prior notice of 
their needs.  There would appear to be training and communication 

Page 54



issues that need to be addressed in response to this.  Better liaison 
between the WCUs and the Witness Service would partly help to 
rectify this. 

 
1.5. The Panel were concerned that the Witness Service appear to 

currently be located in accommodation at the Magistrates Court that 
does not meet their needs and it feels that partners should explore 
alternative options.  

 
1.6. Victim Support are receiving a number of referrals which are 

recorded by Police as “no crime” and which they say they are 
unable to deal with.  In addition, they say that victims may not 
always be aware that they have been referred by the Police.  The 
Panel feels that better links between the Police and Victim Support 
would help to ensure that any issues can be addressed at an early 
stage.  In addition, a common understanding should be developed 
over referrals and when they may or may not be appropriate.  
Finally, a visit to Victim Support would be of benefit to probationers 
in the Police as part of their training. 

 
1.7. The Panel welcomed the fact that there is now a victim support 

worker in the ASBAT but funding for this is time limited.  Long term 
decisions need to be taken about the long term future and 
sustainability of the ASBAT as the service is currently reliant on 
time limited grants.   

 
1.8. The Panel noted that there is a perception that domestic violence 

services are only for women.  However, statistics show that there 
are an increasing number of male victims.   They may be deterred 
from coming forward and seeking help by the fact that services are 
almost entirely staffed by women.  The Panel feels that services 
should set a target for the employment of male staff that reflects the 
percentage of victims who are male.  

 
1.9. The issue of the need for CCTV in the vicinity of the Magistrates 

Court to deter disorder, particularly when the youth courts is sitting, 
was raised.  The cameras cost £25,000 plus £2,500 per annum to 
maintain.  Resources would have to be identified for this but the 
Panel is of the view that this should be given serious consideration 
when decisions are being made on the future installation of 
cameras. 

 
1.10. The Panel noted that some Victim Support volunteers can be 

traumatised by the work that they undertake, particularly those 
dealing with the more serious crimes.  There is currently no 
provision for therapeutic support for them.   Victim Support monitor 
and support them but cannot offer access to emotional support.  
Exposure to trauma can potentially lead to volunteers being unable 
to continue their work.  In addition, their long term welfare also 
needs to be considered.  The Panel therefore feels that partners 

Page 55



should explore the possibility of the provision of appropriate 
psychological support if and when required for volunteers.   

 
1.11. The Panel wishes to thank all of those who came along to Panel 

meetings and gave evidence for their help. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

 
 
 
Meeting:   Safer Communities Executive Board  
 
Date:    18 February 2010 
 
Report Title:  Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme Planning 

2010/2011 
 
Report From:   Councillor Ronald Aitken 
 

Purpose 
 
To provide Board members with an opportunity to suggest topics for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2010/2011 for consideration by 
Members of the Committee. 
 

Background 
 
Under the Local Government Act 2000 local authorities are required to set up 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. These committees are made up of non-
Cabinet/Executive councillors and are proportional to the political balance in 
the Council.   
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees may commission in depth reviews into 
service areas and make recommendations that aim to improve services the 
community receives.  
 
The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in Haringey is to look at the 
services and issues which are important to the community. Scrutiny is a 
statutory service and key part of the Council’s structure which works to ensure 
that services are delivered effectively, efficiently and in the best interest of the 
residents. It is therefore a mechanism through which transparency and public 
accountability may be exercised in local government. 
 
In 2009/2010 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee aligned 
themselves with the theme boards of the Haringey Strategic Partnership.  The 
aim of this is to assist in building close working relationships between the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Haringey Strategic Partnership, to 
prevent duplication of work and provide an independent objective view of what 
needs to be done to improve the quality and cost effectiveness of services 
provided to local people. 
 
It is anticipated that this will help to ensure that the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee commissions task and finish reviews that add value to the work of 

Agenda Item 14Page 57



the Board. 
 
Key issues for consideration 
 
Board Members are requested to consider appropriate suggestions for in 
depth scrutiny reviews for commissioning by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. All review suggestions should: 
 

o Be areas where Overview and Scrutiny can add value. 
o Assist in the Comprehensive Area Assessment Process. 
o Address strategic and/or policy issues  

 

Legal/Financial Implications 
 
Financial Implications 
 

This report does not give rise to any immediate financial implications. 
However, it should be noted that where possible all reviews will have a 
Value for Money aspect. 

 
Legal Implications 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has powers to scrutinise decisions 
taken in the discharge of the Council’s “executive” and “non-executive” 
functions and to make reports and recommendations to Cabinet and Full 
Council. This includes making reports and recommendations on matters 
relating to health services and other matters affecting the Borough or its 
inhabitants. The annual work programme for Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is a matter of local choice. 

 

Recommendations 
 

o That the Safer Communities Executive Board provides appropriate 
suggestions for in depth reviews for consideration by Members of the 
Committee for the 2010/2011 work programme. 

 
o That the Board highlights any forthcoming strategic level 

strategies/policies/action plans which the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee can add value to in their draft stage. 

 

For more information contact: 
 
Contact: Rob Mack, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer 
Tel: 0208 489 2921 
Email: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
1. In-depth review criteria 

Page 58



 
1.1. For scrutiny to add value it is essential that the right areas are 

scrutinised at the appropriate time and contribute to improving 
services. Scrutiny topics will be chosen by Members of the Committee 
having regard to: 

 

• The success of the partnership in achieving LAA outcomes and 
local improvement targets. 

• The views on services expressed in the Comprehensive Area 
Assessment process and other independent assessments, 
including the annual external audit management letter, residents’ 
surveys, and other assessments of need and provision.  

• The views of the Partnership and its themed boards, on those areas 
where scrutiny involvement would be most beneficial. 

• The views of council members and local community, including 
service users. 

 
1.2. It is important than any suggestions for in-depth reviews are on areas 

which: 

• Scrutiny can add value; 

• Are linked to the Sustainable Community Strategy outcomes and 
priorities; 

• Can feed into the Comprehensive Area Assessment process and 
themes. 

 
1.3. Examples of current and recent topics which the Committee has 

conducted in-depth reviews and which are linked to the work of the 
Board include: 

• Anti Social Behaviour  

• Street Prostitution 

• CCTV 

• Youth Reoffending 

• Resourcing of Safer and Stronger Communities LAA Targets 
 
2. Items for consideration at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

2.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a key role in supporting the 
policy making function taking into account the evidence base and the 
views of the public.  To this end, as part of it’s annual work 
programme, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers key 
overarching draft strategies and plans with a view to suggesting any 
improvements which could be made. 
 

3. Next Steps in setting the work programme 
 

3.1. The Overview and Scrutiny will consider suggested topics from the 
partnership boards as well as suggestions from members of the public, 
elected Members and areas arisen throughout the work of the 
Committee before choosing in-depth topics for review. 

Page 59



3.2. It is anticipated that at least one in-depth review will be conducted 
which aligns with each of the Theme Boards. 

3.3. Once the work programme is finalised and approved by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee this will be circulated to the Theme Boards for 
information. 

 
4. Recommendations 
 

o That the Safer Communities Executive Board provides appropriate 
suggestions for in depth reviews for consideration by Members of the 
Committee for the 2010/2011 work programme. 

 
o That the Board highlights any forthcoming strategic level 

strategies/policies/action plans which the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee can add value to in their draft stage. 

 
 

Page 60


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Performance and Project Exception Report (April to December 2009)
	Q3 - Highlight report Safer Communities

	6 Safer Communities Priorities 2010 - 11
	7 Area Based Grant Resource Plans 2010/11
	SCEB Resource allocation -chart appended

	9 Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme Action Plan 2010/11
	Reducing reoffending -action plan

	10 Haringey Emergency Alert Service
	11 Update Safer Communities Executive Board Risk Register
	13 Scrutiny Review - Support to Victims of Crime
	14 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme Planning 2010/11

